GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

e e e e S e ™
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONWVENTION, SHOW & SPORTS FACILITIES

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, November 24, 2004
7:30 a.m. — 9:30 a.m.
Kent County Board Room, 3" Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

AGENDA
Rt L Call to Order
Arena
Authority IL. Approval of October 27, 2004 Minutes Action
John Logie, III. DeVos Place Construction Update — Erhardt/Hunt Information
Chairman
lew Chamberlin IV. Committee Reports
Clif Chorles
Gary Mclnerney a. Building Committee Information
Steven Heacock b. Operations Committee
Birgitilohs i CVB Update Information
losepipiomgssii c. Finance Committee
1. SMG Financial Statements — DeVos Place® Action
and Van Andel Arena®
ii. CAA Financial Statements and Disbursements Action
il Investment Pool Agreement with Kent County Action
1v. Fiscal Year Comparison of Estimate to Actual Results Information
V. SMG Report Information

1. Facilities Calendars

VI Public Comment

VII. Next Meeting Dates
e Strategic Planning Session — Saturday, December 4, 2004
o CAA Board Meeting - January 26, 2005

VIII. Adjournment

Happy Holidays!

_/'—Hilll.
VAN ANDEL
ARENA
GRAND RAPIDS

DeVos Place

303 Monroe Ave. NW

616.742.6600 Grand R“"é‘ﬁ‘a.%“.‘é?%

Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.6590

Van Andel Arena
130 Fulton West
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503




Item II

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, October 27, 2004

L. Call to Order

Chairman John Logie called the meeting to order at 7:35 a.m. Chairman Logie presided and
Susan Waddell recorded in the absence of Birgit Klohs.

Attendance

Members Present: John Logie, Chairman

Lew Chamberlin

Clif Charles
Steve Heacock
Gary MclInerney
Joseph Tomaselli

Members Absent: Birgit Klohs

Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Joe Erhardt Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Jim Gray CAA Owner Representative
George Helmstead CVB
Todd Johnson SMG
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Steve Miller SMG
Bill Sewall Erhardt/Hunt Joint Venture
Dale Sommers CAA Owner Representative
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County
Steve Wilson CVB
Tim Wondergem Wondergem Consulting

II. Minutes of Prior Meeting

The September 22, 2004, Minutes were approved as submitted.

I11. DeVos Place® Construction Update

Mr. Erhardt reported that the riverwalk columns and capitals have been poured and stripped. The
subcontractors began setting precast, followed by removal of sheeting. The removal of Lyon Street is still



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
October 27, 2004 - 2

in process. The granite steps at the Welsh entrance have been completed and reset. Work along Monroe
Avenue is complete with the exception of a few metal panels near the south end. They should be up by
the end of the week. The sidewalk along the Amway Grand Plaza Hotel is in process. Work on Lyon
Street will continue throughout November and December. Site work along the west side of the building
will result after the heavy riverwalk work has been completed. Mr. Sewall reported that the snowguard
system on the exhibit hall roof is being installed. The Grand Center meeting and rehearsal rooms are
complete with the exception of punch list and life safety. Elsewhere in the Grand Center, kitchen final
connections are being made as all equipment has arrived, and back-of-house space finishes continue at the
dock areas and restrooms. The SMG offices will be ready for the December 31 move-in date.

IV. Committee Reports

Building Committee

Mr. Sommers reported that the Committee did not meet in October. On October 19, 2004, the Associated
Builders & Contractors, Inc., Western Michigan Chapter, held its annual Construction Awards Program.
DeVos Place® was recognized in two different areas. In the Roofing-Single Ply category, judges were
impressed that the “new ‘signature’ roof design was accomplished with virtually no roof penetrations.”
DeVos Place® also won the Special Projects-Over $100 Million award. The judges praised the building
with comments such as, “great attention to detail ...everything was crisp and clean.” “Very dramatic
spaces. Consistently well detailed from big spaces to small.” “Fantastic!!”

Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin introduced Todd Johnson, who has been promoted to Director of Event Services at
DeVos Place®. Last weekend, DeVos Place® served dinner for 8,000 patrons. In excess of 400 servers
were bused over from the Amway Grand Plaza who poured from 900 pots of coffee. Over 30,000 pieces
of silverware were used and it is estimated that it took 48 continuous hours to wash them. Since DeVos
Place® has no kitchen facilities, the dinners were prepared at and delivered from the Amway Grand
Hotel. Mr. MacKeigan estimated that the building could accommodate about 15,000 diners.

Mr. Wilson reported that the Strategic Advisory Group presented the results of its competitive analysis.
The study will assist the CVB in setting its future sales goals. Mr. Helmstead reported that the CVB has
104 definite bookings worth 78,500 room nights to a goal of 75,036. New bookings for the month
include the Michigan Music Educator Association-January 2006; National Heritage Academies-February
2005; MARO Employment & Trailing Association-2007, 2009, and 2011; Business Professionals of
America-2007 and 2008; National Grange Association-November 2009; and Midwest Tandem Rally-
September 2005. Angela Gaghan, salesperson for the Lansing market, will be starting November 1, while
Jeff Poole, sales representative for the Washington, D.C., market will be starting December 1. The CVB
negotiated with Northwest Airlines for 10 complimentary coach class tickets and 20 75% reduced-rate
tickets for site inspections, bid presentations, and tradeshow participation.

Finance Committee

Mr. Heacock presented the Finance Committee report.

a. Approval of Disbursements and Payroll for the Period September 15 — October 14, 2004



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
October 27, 2004 - 3

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve payment of disbursements and
payroll totaling 34,398,576.48. Motion carried unanimously.

b. Approval of SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended September 30, 2004. Motion carried
unanimously.

c. Approval of CAA Preliminary Financial Statement Prepared by Beene Garter LLP
Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to approve the Grand Rapids — Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority Preliminary Financial Statements for the period ended September 30, 2004.
Motion carried unanimously.

d. Acceptance of SMG Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2003 and 2004

Motion: Mr. Heacock, supported by Mr. Charles, moved to accept the Special Purpose Financial
Statements for DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® as of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2004
and 2003, and Independent Auditors’ Report. Motion carried unanimously.

V. SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan reported that the Scorpions will play at the Van Andel Arena® on Halloween night.
Cher will be back in November with the Village People. Martina McBride, Michael W. Smith, and
Trans Siberian Orchestra all have holiday shows coming in December. As always, the Select Bank
basketball tournament will be held Thanksgiving weekend. Possible upcoming events include Sting,
Yanni, and Kenny Chesney concerts. Over at DeVos Place®, Porgy & Bess is playing this weekend.
The Michigan High School Amateur Athletic Association will be in town next weekend, and President
Bush will be in town on Saturday.

VIL Public Comments

Mayor Logie recognized Jim Gray for his many years of faithful service and presented him with a
specially framed photograph of the signature snake light that graces the DeVos Hall grand gallery. Jim
will be retiring in mid-December, after the last Building Committee meeting.

VIII. Next Meeting Date

The next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, November 24, 2004. There will be no December meeting.

IX. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 8:25 a.m.

Susan M. Waddell, Recording Secretary



Item IV.a.

Building Committee Report
To
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authoity
November 24, 2004

GRAND CENTER

Wotk in the Grand Center this month focused primarily on incorporating code related items and
systems, along with beginning finishes such as carpet and wall coverings in back of house spaces.

The new Main Office area for SMG has been completed and is ready for stocking with furniture.

The Kitchen final connections are neatly finished and preparations are underway to start up
equipment next month.

DEVOS HALL

The re-roofing operation begun in late September has been completed, and new signage is in process.

WEISH/BALLROOM

Interior renovation of the historic Welsh Lobby continued this month. Refinishing of plaster and
millwotk ate the focal activities. Refinishing of the old tetrazzo flooring was “bought out” to be
performed next month. Just north of the Lobby, drywall and painting activities highlight the Ball
Room and Pre-function areas. Major mechanical system rough-ins ate neating completion and being
used to supply temporary heat in order to maintain finish operations in the coming months. Ceilings
are being installed in the Ballroom and operable panel finishes are being applied.

In the prefunction areas, drywall finishing is in process, elevator V-19 is being installed and the
temporary wall between Phase 2 and 3 is being removed.

SITEWORK

Concrete curbs, roadway and sidewalks continue between the Grand Center and Hotel, and north of
the Ballroom at the handicap accessible plaza. The River Walk conctete has been completed and
walkway planks are in process.



Riverwalk Installation.

West Elevation



Looking north at Welsh Boardroom.




Completed SMG Office.




Pre-function restroom awaiting fixtures and partitions.

South side of Lyon Street snow melt installation. |



yon Street concrete ongoirig_ work.




Ongoing Welsh Lobby Restoration




Item IV.c.i

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2004

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facility



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2005

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE
SALES
OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES
CAPITAL

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
114 280 394 376 18
98,005 542,177 640,182 670,425 (30,243)
407,556 1,590,401 1,997,957 1,987,844 10,113
296,536 817,296 1,113,832 1,092,068 21,764
704,092 2,407,697 3,111,789 3,079,912 31,877
23,514 126,039 149,553 167,000 (17,447)
727,606 2,633,736 3,261,342 3,246,912 14,430
38,838 87,459 126,297 127,132 835
72,304 131,453 203,757 201,022 (2,735)
18,929 40,753 59,682 61,260 1,578
243,656 750,973 994,629 1,000,395 5,766
238,320 641,317 879,637 884,638 5,001
24,811 62,424 87,235 85,107 (2,128)
51,606 96,488 148,094 135,838 (12,256)
501,098 1,650,543 2,151,641 2,140,462 (11,179)
1,189,561 3,461,410 4,650,972 4,635,854 (15,118)
(461,954) (927,674) (1,389,630) (1,388,942) (688)
(461,954) (927,674) (1,389,630) (1,388,942) (688)

DeVos Place performed favorable to the budget for the month of October. Most

of the increase is due to the unbudgeted Bush campaign visit that was hosted
at the end of the month. October all saw the facility host two meal functions at
the same time for a totai of 8,000 dinners served.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2004

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2005, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH October October October
Actual Budget FY 2004
Number of Events 50 37 25
Attendance 66,223 58,450 16,489
Direct Event Income $210,071 $203,407 $74,043
Ancillary Income 145,573 109,906 27,460
Other Income 10,913 13,917 13,995
Indirect Expenses (330,230) (352,362) (281,617)
Net Income $36,328 ($25,132) ($166,119)
YTD YTD 2005 YTD 2005 YTD 2004
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 114 93 55
Attendance 98,005 142,175 38,328
Direct Event Income $407,556 $426,665 $129,706
Ancillary Income 296,536 230,071 51,029
Other income 23,514 55,668 21,948
indirect Expenses (1,189,561) (1,326,448) (779,801)
Net Income ($461,954) ($614,044) ($577,117)

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in slightly ahead of budget due to the hosting of the Bush Rally.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget for the month. This was partly due to electric
revenue generated from the Gordon Food Service event hosted.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in close to expected levels for the month. No spending during
the month was out of the ordinary either positive or negative.




DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/04

----------------- CURRENT = = == == === =========== ——ceeeoomanmmmeoYTD-memmom-mmommooommo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 195,813 196,983 71,272 397,494 423,001 124,419
SERVICES INCOME 14,259 6,424 2,71 10,063 3,664 5,287
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 210,071 203,407 74,043 407,556 426,665 129,706
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 52,677 50,100 7,922 101,029 85,326 17,041
NOVELTY 641 2,100 103 1,091 3,350 1,227
ELECTRICAL 54,012 26,228 1,817 82,138 77,557 2,421
OTHER ANCILLARY 38,244 31,478 17,618 112,278 63,838 30,340
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 145,573 109,906 27,460 296,536 230,071 51,029
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 355,645 313,313 101,503 704,093 656,736 180,735
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 10,913 13,917 13,995 23,514 55,668 21,948
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 366,558 327,230 115,498 727,607 712,404 202,684
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 16,231 10,596 9,967 38,838 42,384 37,576
FINANCE 15,797 16,752 17,361 72,304 67,008 55,544
MARKETING 3,347 5,104 3,289 18,929 20,416 18,624
OPERATIONS 74,727 82,074 55,464 243,656 332,796 146,706
EVENT MANAGEMENT 51,283 73,470 56,467 238,320 293,880 137,915
BOX OFFICE 5,876 7,093 11,252 24,811 28,372 25,396
SALES 10,912 11,321 22,113 51,606 45,284 59,828
OVERHEAD 152,057 145,952 105,702 501,098 496,308 298,212
INDIRECT EXPENSES 330,230 352,362 281,617 1,189,561 1,326,448 779,801
NET OPERATING INCOME 36,328 <25,132> <166,119> <461,954> <614,044> <577,117>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 36,328 <25,132> <166,119> <461,954> <614,044> <577,117>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/04

---------------- CURRENT--------==s=o=c-= --c-----------YEAR TO DATE------------~
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 0 ] 0 1,168 0 0
Changeover Setup Billed 550 0 0 2,402 0 0
Stagehands Billed 100,370 94,725 75, 145 158,110 144,715 142,172
Security Billed 11,678 4,460 2,320 26,932 8,645 5,020
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 10,307 10,825 6,416 21,129 20,925 15,601
Box Office Billed 1,400 1,600 1,100 3,100 3,000 2,400
Ticketing Service Billed 7,724 7,675 2,720 15,227 16,950 7,572
Utilities Billed 0 0 0 0 0 300
City Police Fire Billed 1,995 0 726 5,845 0 1,718
Traffic Control Billed 924 0 0 4,781 0 53
EMT Medical Billed 2,538 1,872 1,424 5,969 2,744 2,554
Cleaning Billed 1,140 0 75 1,140 [ 75
Insurance Billed 1,594 0 786 3,210 (] 786
Telephone Billed 21,905 225 1,695 26,320 750 2,095
Other Production Billed 7,534 0 555 10,962 0 2,993
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 169,658 121,082 92,963 286,294 197,729 183,338
Advertising Expense 0 0 0 1,168 0 0
Stagehand Wages 90,439 91,883 74,142 144,463 140,373 139,382
Security Wages 1] 4,460 [o] 1] 8,645 0
Contracted Security Expense 11,245 0 2,553 25,205 0 5,253
Ushers & T/T Wages 7,215 7,578 4,491 14,790 14,648 10,921
Ticket Sellers Wages 856 1,650 540 2,299 3,350 1,061
Ticket Service Charge Expense 2,777 3,070 804 5,505 6,780 2,876
Ticket Supplies 0 0 0 5,481 [] (]
City Police Fire Expense 1,995 0 726 5,783 0 1,718
Traffic Control Expense 1,743 125 711 6,052 125 1,169
EMT Medical Expense 2,214 1,572 1,301 4,965 2,694 2,156
Cleaning Wages 0 4,320 3,726 0 17,450 9,355
Contracted Cleaning Expense 29,629 0 1] 46,718 0 0
Insurance Expense 198 0 674 1,434 [ 674
Allocated Telephone Expense 5,476 0 424 6,694 0 524
Production Expense 1,612 0 100 5,675 0 2,963
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 155,399 114,658 90,192 276,232 194,065 178,051

NET SERVICE INCOME 14,259 6,424 2,771 10,063 3,664 5,287




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/04

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH 1,559,926
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 590,744
PREPAID EXPENSES 110,267
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,260,937

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS 2,260,937

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 290,895

ACCRUED EXPENSES 129,550

ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS 653,078
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,073,523
EQUITY

FUNDING RECEIVED 413,102
RETAINED EARNINGS 1,236,267
NET INCOME (LOSS) <461,954>
TOTAL EQUITY 1,187,414

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,260,937




DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/04

—————————————————— CURRENT------w-mmmcemecens cmccccnmmmmemm e e e =YD - - e - o mmmm o oo o
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 59,437 80,317 74,407 236,165 321,268 228, 062
Part-Time 7,752 62,251 12,920 25,209 249,004 23,092
Wages-Trade 115,142 23,426 108,017 278,553 93,704 216,756
Auto Allowance 1,671 0 1,971 7,583 0 7,883
Auto Expense 0 2,121 150 600 8,484 600
Taxes & Benefits 43,693 43,818 43,845 138,409 175,272 112,430
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <115,894> <79,161> <102,495> <230,827> <316,644> <223,413>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 111,800 132,772 138,815 455,692 531,088 365,410
Contracted Security 17,858 19,000 8,506 78,411 76,000 25,030
Other Contracted Services 0 200 155 241 800 310
Travel & Entertainment 0 1,626 1,075 1,574 6,504 4,299
Corporate Travel 0 0 0 <221> 0 221
Meetings & Conventions [} 1,958 <918> 9,458 9,332 6,355
Dues & Subscriptions 248 417 o] 1,373 1,668 1,983
Employee Training 0 833 0 7,021 3,332 0
Computer Expense 2,658 5,417 4,770 23,067 21,668 12,524
Professional Fees 10,324 2,625 3,000 14,407 10,500 11,589
Marketing & Advertising 1,501 2,467 13,271 12,974 9,868 29,443
Box Office Expenses 165 0 29 332 0 23
Small Equipment 0 [ ] 75 0 0
Trash Removal 1,682 3,000 697 2,938 12,000 1,212
Equipment Rental 786 500 1,115 3,485 2,000 3,048
Exterminating 1,500 500 375 4,993 2,000 1,125
Cleaning 0 0 ] 0 3,000 ]
Construction Costs 536 0 3,758 2,307 0 13,760
Repairs & Maintenance 8,209 21,721 3,823 49,638 86,884 15, 655
Supplies 24,118 19,208 7,580 43,408 76,832 20,609
Bank Service Charges 873 750 705 3,198 3,000 2,455
Insurance 19,828 16,454 8,043 62,081 65,816 28,992
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 99 0 (4]
Printing & Stationary 452 1,125 276 629 4,500 1,608
Ooffice Supplies 1,099 625 954 920 2,500 2,817
Postage 186 417 222 600 1,668 493
Parking Expense 1,161 1,000 2,170 6,039 4,000 7,134
Telephone Long Distance 6,945 6,000 14,857 22,755 24,000 21,444
Utilities 103,842 94,800 49,408 308,442 291,700 125,368
Base Fee 19,935 19,780 19,354 80,320 79,120 77,417
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <5,476> <833> <424> <6,694> <3,332> <524>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 218,430 219,590 142,802 733,869 795,360 414,391
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 330,230 352,362 281,617 1,189,561 1,326,448 779,801




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Box Office - Electronic Signage 14,000 14,000 Open
Spotlights 125,000 125,000 Open
Security System Upgrades 39,489 39,489 Open
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 15,000 Open
Total Arena 193,489 - 193,489
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 193,489 - 193,489
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,523,707 (1,389,630) 134,077 245,318
Benchmark 1,647,957 (1,388,942) 259,015 1,531
Excess (124,250) (688) (124,938) 243,787

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 239,220 239,219 478,439 464,504
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,739,690 3,261,342 8,001,032 7,412,186
Benchmark Revenue 4,465,338 3,246,912 7,712,250 6,716,238
Revenue Excess 274,352 14,430 288,782 695,948
Incentive Fee ** - - - 139,190
Total SMG Management Fee 239,220 239,219 478,439 603,694

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



| VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2004

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Bob Johnson

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item I'V.c.1



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2005

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE

FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL

Comments:

October marks the start of the Griffins season for the Arena. The Arena
performed below budgeted expectations due to hosting only one concert,
and the below expected sales for the Freestyle Motocross event. Hosting

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

26 87 13 17 @)
131,383 542,155 673,538 709,200 (35,662)
284,912 960,514 1,245,426 1,278,171 (32,745)
372,718 1,105,003 1,477,721 1,535,524 (57,803)
657,630 2,065,517 2,723,147 2,813,695 (90,548)
683,330 1,333213 2,016,543 1,985,000 31,543
1,340,960 3,398,730 4,739,690 4,798,605 (59,005)
37,574 70,739 108,313 107,510 (803)
61,066 130,635 191,701 193,611 1,910
73,899 157,595 231,494 229,064 (2,430)
404,191 774892 1,179,083 1,192,081 12,998
35,661 74,107 109,768 107,120 (2,648)
30,718 81,286 112,004 113,597 1,593
11,997 24,673 36,670 36,941 271
322,533 924417 1,246,950 1,303,597 56,647
977,640 2,238,344 3,215,983 3,283,521 67,538
363,321 1,160,386 1,523,707 1,515,174 8,533
363,321 1,160,386 1,523,707 1,515,174 8,533

a Detroit Pistons preseason game helped offset some of the shortfall.

General Manager




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2004

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2005, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH October October October
Actual Budget FY 2004
Number of Events 15 7 9
Attendance 62,845 48,500 65,715
Direct Event Income $90,036 $104,585 $186,095
Ancillary Income 131,501 134,235 147,393
Other income 154,238 165,416 208,382
Indirect Expenses (269,119) (273,002) (300,647)
Net Income $106,656 $131,233 $241,223
YTD YTD 2005 YTD 2005 YTD 2004
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 26 27 27
Attendance 131,383 172,700 168,691
Direct Event iIncome $284,912 $434,844 $420,528
Ancillary Income 372,718 471,731 423,943
Other Income 683,330 661,664 691,161
Indirect Expenses (977,640) (1,092,008) (959,168)
Net Income $363,321 $476,231 $576,465

EVENT INCOME

Event income fell below budget expectations for the month. The Arena hosted one fewer
concert than expected, and the Freestyle Motocross event had lower than expected sales.
Ringling Brothers Circus originally budgeted for September (falling below budget) and the
Detroit Pistons preseason game helped offset the shortfall from the other events.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in at expected levels for the month. Due to the change in the mix of
events, per cap spending was below budget for the month, however, this was offset by the
fact that the events hosted drew a higher attendance than the budgeted events.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/04

----------------- CURRENT- - = ===~ === === =m=ms =mmmmmeoee—uacceaYTDmmmmo=—o-oo-comoooooe
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 168,862 145,250 217,918 329,481 546,350 515,759
SERVICES INCOME <78,826> <40,665> <31,823> <44,569> <111,506> <95,231>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 90,036 104,585 186,095 284,912 434,844 420,528
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 117,790 107,421 120,660 302,300 381,225 347,517
NOVELTY 8,191 23,604 24,144 64,898 86,126 73,066
OTHER ANCILLARY 5,520 3,210 2,590 5,520 4,380 3,360
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 131,501 134,235 147,393 372,718 471,731 423,943
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 221,537 238,820 333,488 657,630 906,575 844,471
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 154,238 165,416 208,382 683,330 661,664 691,161
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 375,774 404,236 541,870 1,340,961 1,568,239 1,535,633
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,915 8,834 14,567 37,574 35,336 42,232
FINANCE 14,968 16,009 15,310 61,066 64,036 50,294
MARKETING 17,385 18,963 18,524 73,899 75,852 63,161
LUXURY SEATING 7,164 9,467 7,778 30,718 37,868 30,787
OPERATIONS 114,254 99,089 119,507 404,191 396,356 350,577
BOX OFFICE 12,364 8,928 13,416 35,661 35,712 35,292
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 2,727 3,079 3,815 11,997 12,316 12,211
OVERHEAD 90,341 108,633 107,731 322,533 434,532 374,614
INDIRECT EXPENSES 269,119 273,002 300,647 977,640 1,092,008 959,168
NET OPERATING INCOME 106,656 131,234 241,223 363,321 476,231 576,465
OTHER EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSE (INCOME) 0 0 3,816 0 0 48,816
OTHER EXPENSES 0 0 3,816 0 0 48,816
NET INCOME (LOSS) 106,656 131,234 237,407 363,321 476,231 527,649




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/04

———————————————— CURRENT~ --=----=~-==2cn=-c -v------------YEAR TO DATE------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 36,623 4} 26,066 153,101 ] 100,721
Labor Billed 653 1,080 1,620 4,973 5,400 5,850
Changeover Setup Billed 3,119 6,600 10,885 27,827 44,000 37,593
Stagehands Billed 16,668 32,300 51,608 146,945 177,900 157,785
Security Billed 5,339 12,000 16,141 49,058 62,100 52,933
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 2,896 7,900 10,532 28,456 39,000 35,872
Box Office Billed 516 800 1,290 3,741 4,000 3,225
Ticketing Service Billed 8,186 19,500 35,431 62,248 89,500 73,541
Utilities Billed 1,000 0 4] 1,000 0 0
City Police Fire Billed 1,452 1,572 1,232 3,580 4,260 3,052
EMT Medical Billed 1,988 2,700 1,730 6,763 7,625 5,080
Cleaning Billed 1,601 7,200 8,752 22,561 39,000 33,467
Group Sales Commissions Billed 870 0 327 870 ] 327
Telephone Billed 5,395 2,075 4,330 11,795 11,335 11,790
Damages Billed 0 0 350 0 0 350
Other Production Billed 21,258 8,000 31,701 71,446 52,000 117,285
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 107,565 101,727 201,995 594,364 536,120 638,869
Advertising Expense 35,216 0 24,636 153,494 0 97,464
Labor Wages 555 918 1,377 4,227 5,049 4,973
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 7,953 19,750 21,620 26,607 66,350 53,758
Stagehand Wages 24,611 31,903 51,056 146,344 181,645 161,872
Contracted Security Expense 29,521 17,400 22,506 73,144 73,680 69,160
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 13,534 17,800 21,415 37,005 66,680 53,642
Ticket Sellers Wages 439 0 1,097 3,180 0 2,412
Ticket Sellers P/R Taxes Bene 0 0 0 0 0 329
Ticket Service Charge Expense 14,588 19,500 34,581 57,803 104,500 70,276
City Police Fire Expense 1,452 1,572 1,232 3,500 5,846 3,082
EMT Medical Expense 4,471 3,643 2,740 8,368 10,397 6,270
Contracted Cleaning Expense 16,571 21,345 20,284 36,310 78,126 56,971
Insurance Expense 0 0 0 0 0 12,816
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,259 561 1,560 3,419 3,353 4,047
Production Expense 36,222 8,000 29,715 85,532 52,000 137,058
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 186,391 142,392 233,818 638,933 647,626 734,100

NET SERVICE INCOME <78,826> <40,665> <31,823> <44,569> <111,506> <95,231>




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/04

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH 3,075,784
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 731,765
PREPAID EXPENSES 67,287
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,874,836

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS 3,874,836

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 178,753
ACCRUED EXPENSES 310,649
DEFERRED INCOME 1,233,537
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS 1,421,843
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,144,782
EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED <1,150,000>
FUNDING RECEIVED 53,365
RETAINED EARNINGS 1,463,368
NET INCOME (LOSS) 363,321
TOTAL EQUITY 730,054

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,874,836



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 10/31/04

————————————————— CURRENT-----------ccccoom cmmmmmcemmmem e o= =YD~ - - - - o oo oo oo -

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 56,052 56,102 65,843 237,291 224,408 202,705
Part-Time 8,880 3,333 7,696 18,502 13,332 13,466
Wages-Trade 63,088 80,733 92,793 271,644 322,932 251,977
Wages-Trade Part-Time 0 0 0 5,020 0 0
Auto Allowance 577 0 577 2,308 0 2,308
Auto Expense 0 985 300 1,200 3,940 1,200
Taxes & Benefits 32,465 34,180 35,668 135,648 136,720 113,680

Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <41,567> <70,716> <70,431> <219,191> <282,864> <220,733>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 119,494 104,617 132,446 452,421 418,468 364,604
Contracted Security 18,239 19,000 26,706 75,802 76,000 84,862
Contracted Cleaning 2,098 2,292 2,098 10,148 9,168 15,113
Other Contracted Services 314 300 314 1,876 1,200 1,256
Travel & Entertainment 213 558 352 936 2,232 3,000
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 0 2,500 0
Meetings & Conventions 0 350 0 2,436 1,400 699
Dues & Subscriptionsg 841 208 0 1,409 832 2,601
Employee Training 0 750 61 200 3,000 100
Computer Expense 3,250 5,417 5,579 20,315 21,668 13,322
Professional Fees 2,801 2,375 7,273 8,906 9,500 14,467
Marketing & Advertising 2,541 7,500 2,898 10,325 30,000 20,823
Box Office Expenses 9 V] <267> <152> 0 <543>
Small Equipment 0 4] 0 409 0 0
Trash Removal 1,497 1,250 2,948 3,534 5,000 5,449
Equipment Rental 1,067 1,300 1,581 4,721 5,200 4,977
Landscaping 0 292 0 0 1,168 0
Exterminating 248 333 495 990 1,332 990
Cleaning 0 900 265 0 3,600 9,083
Repairs & Maintenance 9,591 9,333 9,935 44,510 37,332 27,329
Supplies 18,865 12,841 7,673 40,356 S1,364 31,321
Bank Service Charges 689 1,000 913 2,273 4,000 3,032
Insurance 13,360 13,269 9,782 41,634 53,076 37,571
Printing & Stationary 0 1,750 (] 687 7,000 0
Office Supplies 1,036 1,000 2,296 3,816 4,000 3,376
Postage 387 1,000 229 3,517 4,000 2,887
Parking Expense 4,278 1,500 1,906 10,694 6,000 9,843
Telephone Long Distance 6,904 3,000 5,224 24,381 12,000 19,962
Utilities 45,140 63,567 66,132 146,395 254,268 219,207
Base Fee 19,935 19,780 19,354 79,159 79,120 77,417

Common Area Expense <2,419> <2,730> <3,383> <10,639> <10,920> <8,932>

Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <1,259> <375> <2,162> <3,419> <1,500> <4,649>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 149,624 168,385 168,200 525,219 673,540 594,564
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 269,119 273,002 300,647 977,640 1,092,008 959,168



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Box Office - Electronic Signage 14,000 14,000 Open
Spotlights 125,000 125,000 Open
Security System Upgrades 39,489 39,489 Open
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 15,000 Open
Total Arena 193,489 - 193,489
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 193,489 - 193,489
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,523,707 (1,389,630) 134,077 245,318
Benchmark 1,647,957  (1,388,942) 259,015 1,531
Excess (124,250) (688) (124,938) 243,787

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 239,220 239,219 478,439 464,504
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,739,690 3,261,342 8,001,032 7,412,186
Benchmark Revenue 4,465,338 3,246,912 7,712,250 6,716,238
Revenue Excess 274,352 14,430 288,782 695,948
Incentive Fee ** - - - 139,190
Total SMG Management Fee 239,220 239,219 478,439 603,694

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



Item IV.c.11

£€'980'909°0¢
Zovep'syL'Le

L1°26¥'v06'6"
6€'266'289'.€

12'165'982°C

1L'165'95L'2
11°9p9'e69'2
12'9v9'669'Z

v6'v16'09

v6'7¥6'09

££'980'808'0¢

00'0/'€2

00'0L'€2

££'919'18¥'0e

eealg'igr'oe

k.g-ﬁ-ﬂ
96'905'LH1'E
8E'E¥S'00S'S
vZ'616'201'61

#0 ‘L€ 0

ALINO3 B s3lLNIavi1 viol

Aynb3 jejo)

awoau| JaN
Aynbg jeg Bujuado - 0008
Aynb3

seplqer [eyol
SoIqeT JuauNY Bjol

SOGEIT JUBNY JaYO [ej0L

ajquied abeu|eiay - 2666
sepjiiqe; juaund BYyo

ajqeied sjunoday [BjoL

siqeded sunody - 0002
ajqeded sjunoddy
sapiqe| esun
sopliqer]
AlIND3 B s3UImAvI

$13SSV Tviol

sjessy paxyd jejol

SapIYeA
sjessy paxid

$J38SY Juaung [ejol

sBujaeg/Bupjoayd jejoL

eBeuEiay - Ysed - 1668
yseo - suopesado - 0901
UORONIISUOD - YsED - 00}

18ARS XBJ - UOjJONIISUOD - YseD - 0201

sBujaeg/Bupjosyo
sjessy JuaLind
s13assv

#002 ‘1€ 18q0)20 jO SY
j9ays asuejeq
fuoyny eusaly/uonusauod Ajuno) yusy-spidey pueld

-Page | of 8 -

s|seq |enisoy
¥0/80/L1

WY €6



2:05 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

11104104 Reconciliation Detail
1020 - Cash - Construction - Max Saver, Period Ending 10/31/2004

Type Date Num Name ﬂ Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 19,139,708.15
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item
Deposit 10/31/2004 X 28,211.09 28,211.09
Total Deposits and Credits 28,211.09 28,211.09
Total Cleared Transactions 28,211.08 28,211.09
Cleared Balance 28211.09 19,167,919.24
Register Balance as of 10/31/2004 28,211.09 19,167,919.24
Ending Balance 28,211.09 19,167,919.24

-Page 2 of 8 -



2:33 PM

11/04/04

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Reconciliation Detail
1030 - Cash - Construction, Period Ending 10/31/2004

Type Date Num Name
Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 12 items
Check 9/14/2004 1793 LaClalre Studio
Check 9/28/2004 1795 Irwin Seating Compa...
Check 9/28/2004 1796 Materials Testing Co...
Check 10/14/2004 2001 GR-KC C/AA Retain...
Check 10/14/2004 2002 Jerry G Fellinger
Check 10/14/2004 2003 Intaglio
Check 10/14/2004 2004 J.P. Gray Consulting...
Check 10/14/2004 2007 SAE Industries
Check 10/14/2004 2008 Dale H. Sommers
Check 10/14/2004 2005 Materials Testing Co...
Check 10/14/2004 2000 Erhardt-Hunt/Joint V...
Check 10/14/2004 2006 Midstate Securitty
Total Checks and Payments
Deposits and Credits - 1 item
Deposit 10/31/2004
Total Deposits and Credits
Total Cleared Transactions
Cleared Balance
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 3 items
Biil Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 2011 Robert Duff Consulti...
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 2010 Progressive AE
Bil Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 2009 Nextel Communicati...

Total Checks and Payments
Total Uncleared Transactions
Register Balance as of 10/31/2004

Ending Balance

c_lr- Amount Balance
9,638,464.39
X -5,000.00 -5,000.00
X -104,180.37 -109,190.37
X -16,495.50 -125,685.87
X -75,334.00 -201,019.87
X -1,200.00 -202,219.87
X -19,657.00 -221,776.87
X -7,220.00 -228,996.87
X -4,665.83 -233,662.70
X -11,960.00 -245,622.70
X -13,232.31 -258,855.01
X -3,820,101.00 -4,078,956.01
X -19,240.08 -4,098,196.07
-4,098,196.07 -4,098,196.07
X 6,847.26 6,847.26
6,847.26 6,847.26
-4,091,348.81 -4,091,348 .81
-4,091,348.81 5,647,115.58
-3,277.50 -3,277.50
-43,169.78 -46,447 .28
-124.94 -46,572.22
-46,572.22 -46,572.22
-46,572.22 -46,572.22
-4,137,921.03 5,500,543.36
-4,137,921.03 5,500,543.36

-Page 3 of 8 -



9:24 AM
11/08/04

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Reconciliation Detail

1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 10/31/2004

Type Date Num Name
Beginning Balance
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 22 items
Check 9/28/2004 5609 ICMA Retirement Corp
Check 9/28/2004 5608 ICMA Retirement Corp
Check 9/28/2004 5611 The Hartford
Check 9/28/2004 5605 DTE Energy
Check 9/28/2004 5604 Dickinson Wright PL...
Check 9/28/2004 5610 Priority Health
Check 9/28/2004 5603 Consumers Energy
Check 9/28/2004 5606 Grand Rapids City T....
Check 10/1/2004 10086 Susan M. Waddell
Check 10/1/2004 10086 Susan M. Waddell
Check 10/14/2004 6006 Rapid Hot Coffee Se...
Check 10/14/2004 6004 Kent Count Dept of ...
Check 10/14/2004 6003 ICMA Retirement Corp
Check 10/14/2004 6002 ICMA Retirement Corp
Check 10/14/2004 6001 Grand Rapids City T...
Check 10/14/2004 6000 Consumers Energy
Check 10/14/2004 6007 SMG - Philadelphia
Check 10/15/2004 10087 Susan M. Waddell
Check 10/15/2004 10087 Susan M. Waddell
Check 10/2712004 6008 Intuit
Check 10/29/2004 10088 Susan M. Waddell
Check 10/29/2004 10088 Susan M. Waddell
Total Checks and Payments
Deposits and Credits - 3 items
Deposit 10/13/2004
Deposit 10/21/2004
Deposit 10/31/2004
Total Deposits and Credits
Total Cleared Transactions
Cleared Balance
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 10 items
Check 10/14/2004 6005 Office Depot
Bill Pmt -Check 10/27/2004 6009 Consumers Energy
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 6017 Susan Waddell
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 6016 Priority Health
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 6015 McConomy Propertie...
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 6013 ICMA Retirement Co...
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 6012 ICMA Retirement Co...
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 6011 Grand Rapids City T...
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 6010 Dickinson Wright PL...
Bill Pmt -Check 10/28/2004 6014 McBee Systems, inc.

Total Checks and Payments

Total Uncleared Transactions

Register Balance as of 10/31/2004

Cir

PRI R TR R TE B B  P B I B B B B B P ]

XXX

Amount Balance
3,031,499.84
-250.92 -250.92
-50.00 -300.92
-3,873.00 -4,173.92
-3,753.93 -7,927.85
-407.20 -8,335.05
-398.73 -8,733.78
-50,346.55 -59,080.33
-5,035.00 -64,115.33
-1,381.03 -65,496.36
-857.64 -86,354.00
-27.68 -66,381.68
-11,613.32 -77,995.00
-50.00 -78,045.00
-250.92 -78,295.92
-3,314.85 -81,610.77
-30,430.80 -112,041.57
-138,190.00 -251,231.57
-1,381.03 -252,612.60
-757.20 -253,369.80
-349.00 -253,718.80
-1,381.03 -255,089.83
-757.20 -255,857.03
-255,857.03 -255,857.03
15,485.00 15,485.00
400,000.00 415,485.00
2,554.41 418,039.41
418,039.41 418,039.41
162,182.38 162,182.38
162,182.38 3,193,682.22
-861.39 -861.39
-64,116.62 -64,978.01
-33.99 -65,012.00
-398.73 -65,410.73
-2,750.00 -68,160.73
-50.00 -68,210.73
-250.92 -68,461.65
-6,025.07 -74,486.72
-1,421.34 -75,908.06
-267.20 -76,175.26
-76,175.26 -76,175.26
-76,175.26 -76,175.26
86,007.12 3,117,506.96

-Page 4 of 8 -



1:59 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

11104704 Reconciliation Detail
9991 - Cash - Retainage, Period Ending 10/31/2004

Type Date Num Name Cir Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 2,616,395.45
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 2 items
Deposit 10/15/2004 X 75,334.00 75,334.00
Deposlt 10/31/2004 X 3.917.32 79,251.32
Total Deposits and Credits 79,251.32 79,251.32
Total Cleared Transactions 79,251.32 79,251.32
Cleared Balance 79,2561.32 2,695,646.77
Register Balance as of 10/31/2004 79,251.32 2,695,646.77
Ending Balance 79,251.32 2,695,846.77

-Page 5 of 8 -



Ll l6v'po6'e” swoau] JaN
69'108'28£'9} asuadx3 |ejoL o
p1600'ST S30IA19 [EUCS12d - 0008 IE10L 5
pL'06L'S s)yauag sakojdwz - 0508 g
00'618'8} sobem aakoidw3 - 1008 s
$a0jAIaS [RUOSIAd - 0008 v
L6°SE0' b asuadx3 sapIIBN - 00€9 [EJOL
zeTy'ey 19MBS % JOIEM - 0¥
oLVES auoydajal - 0gco
00'629'S9 weds - 0Zco
£6'€SL'E se [eInjeN - 0169
£0°069'vEE Ayo19la - 109
asuadx3 SIIIBN - 00€9
1ZPSS0l sasuadx3 @ saliddns OO + 0019 €101
86°091'} sayddns - 0249
€Z'9E) asuadx3 BupasiN - 0119
00'806'8 AynqeryApadosd-asueinsy - 009
oo'6be $82jAJ0g 19)ndWod - 0Z09
sesuadx3 '@ sajiddng JoUI0 - 0019
00'064'6€ 1 sead JuowsBeuey Ajjjoed - 0209
18'682'L Kyojes uesapad - 9609
L1'266'8£0'1 $83JAI9S [ENYORUOD JBYIO - 0909
00'S10'¥8 day s,s50umonbi 109foud - 0909
16'1£8'98 $80jAIag [BUOISSAJ0Ld * 0009 [EIOL
69°091'S seojAles [eba - 0v09
ez’ 1L9'le sedjAles Buppny/Buunodoy - 1009
$80JAI9S [BUOISSJOId - 0009
00'528'825'0} diNO-ssaiBoid uj UORINAISUOD - 0209
L6°0v9'op Bupse [BdIBI UORONLISUOD - 0109
15°ZH8'220'y BupsaujBu3 pue [eINYIYY - 0009
asuadx3
Z6'e0e'esr'e awoou| [e1oL
00'99L'12} senuaAsy Bupiied - say
00'S6L'SE esee pue - oveP
00°000'051'} suopesado Aytjoed - 0es¥
zLseg'shl SUSULSIAL) UO JSBIB - 008Y
00°000'+02'Z uoddng ajeAld - 010Y
02'.01'628' woddns [esapa - 0£0¥
awoouy|
#0300 - Inp
#00Z 190320 ybnoayy Ainp siseg jen1aoy
mm°|— “ “—._ho J & 0/80/L1

fuoyny eualy/uonuaAuo) Ajunod Judj-spidey pueio WY £e'6



-Page 7 of 8 -

L isy'vos'e- oV’ 192'199 ov'L9L'299 11°992°229'01- Ly'esz'Tig'ol- dwodu] 19N
69'108'28¢'9L (VA AN oevZl'sr9 6eL.9'6EL'S) 6ELL9'6EL'S) asuadx3 (ejo)
¥1'608'sZ $1°609'SC $1'609'ST 000 000 $AD)AI9S JRUOSId - 0008
L6'SE0' LY 89'689'8LY £9'689'8LY 60'9¥e'sZ 60'9bE'82 asuadx3 sapiinn - 0089
1Zpss'ol LZvss'ol LTyss'ol 00'0 000 sosuadx3 g sejiddng OO - 0049
00'061'6E}L 00'061'6€1 00°08)'6EL 000 000 $994 JuaweBeuely AH1ded - 0209
19'652'L 19'652'L 18'652'L 000 000 Kyajes ueysapad - 5909
11°266'8E0'L 62Z'6E'0) 62'68£°01 29°159'820') 20°.59'820') $3D|AI9S [ENIOBHUOD JALIO - 0909
00'510'p8 000 000 00'510'p8 00'5L0'v8 day s 1oumonBIN 19fo1d - 0509
16'1€8'8¢ 16'181'9E 16'18b'9E 00°05¢ 00'0S¢ $3JJAI0G |BUOISSAJOLd - 0009
00'628'825'04 000 000 00'528'825°0} 00'528'825'0) diN©-853.801d U] UORINNSUOD - 0208
16°0p9'0p 000 000 16°0va'sp Le'0ba'sy Bupsa) [elRIRI UORINLSUOD - 0109
18°Zy8'220'Y 000 000 1§'T¥8'Z20'Y 1§'2p8'2Z0'Y Bupsauifiug pue j8INIIYLY - 0009
: Isuadxzy
Z6'E0E'e8Y'e 0L'168'SLE'} 0L'168'SLE'} ZZUY'LoLS ZZP'L9L'S awoauyj 3oL
00'092'121 00'992'121L 00'89L'12L 000 000 sonuaAdy Bupped - Sy
00'66L'SE 00'66L'SE 00'66L'SE 000 000 25897 pue - OV
00°000'05L'L 00'000°051'} 00°000'0S4'E 000 000 suopesedo Ajlided - 0SSy
zLseo'shl 0.°0ec's 0L'0EE'8 20'S0E'0b1 20°'soe'ovl SIURWIISIAU] UO JSAIBLY) - 00SY
00'000'P0Z'2 00’0 000 00°000'P0Z'Z 00'000'#02'2 yoddng a3eAnd - 0¥0Y
0Z'201'€28'2 000 000 0Z'L01'e28'2 0Z'201'628'2 yoddng [esopad - 060
awodu)
vioL suopesedo [wjoL (suopesedo) UORONNSUOY 8101 (uogonysuog)
swRdRidey jeyde) B ujwpy R UoRUBAUOD
$00Z 1340320 ybnosys Ainp siseg |ensody
pung Aq sso1 B Jyoid voiso/LY

Auoyiny eualy/uoiusAuo) Ajunod Judy-spidey puels Wd Zbiz



2:36 PM
11/08/04
Accrual Basis

4800 - Interest on Investments
4530 - Facility Operations
4640 - Land Lease

4645 - Parking Revenues

4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total income

Expense

6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
8040 - Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6080 - Other Contractual Services

6066 - Pedestrian Safety

6088 - Parking Management

6070 - Facility Management Fees

8100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6020 - Computer Services
8030 - insurance-Property/Liability
8110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

8320 - Steam

6330 - Telephone

6340 - Water & Sewer
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

8000 - Personal Services

8001 - Employee Wages
8030 - Employee Benefits

Total 8000 - Personal Services

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

Total Expense

Net Income

July through October 2004
Admin & Capital Replacement
Operations)
Jul - Oct 04 & $ Over Budget % of Budget

. ] . ] ]
8,330.70 7,332.00 998.70 113.62%
1,150,000.00 803,228.00 346,772.00 143.17%
35,795.00 41,000.00 -5,205.00 87.31%
121,766.00 215,500.00 -93,734.00 56.5%
0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
1,315,891.70 1,072,080.00 243,831.70 122.74%
31,671.28 20,668.00 11,003.28 153.24%
4,810.69 13,332.00 -8,521.31 36.08%
36,481.97 34,000.00 2,481.97 107.3%

10,339.29
7,259.81 28,668.00 -21,408.19 25.32%
0.00 85,672.00 -85,672.00 0.0%

139,190.00

349.00
8,908.00 4,565.00 4,343.00 195.14%
136.23 268.00 -A31.77 50.83%
1,160.98 368.00 792.98 315.48%
10,554.21 5,201.00 5,353.21 202.93%
0.00 64,496.00 -64,496.00 0.0%
306,878.73 359,332.00 -52,453.27 85.4%
3,753.93 25,000.00 -21,246.07 15.02%
65,629.00 332,348.00 -266,719.00 19.75%

0.00
42,428.22 44,468.00 -2,039.78 95.41%
418,689.88 761,148.00 -342,458.12 55.01%
18,819.00 18,112.00 707.00 103.9%
6,790.14 6,312.00 47814 107.58%
25,609.14 24,424.00 1,185.14 104.85%
648,124.30 1,003,609.00 -355,484.70 64.58%
667,767.40 68,451.00 599,316.40 876.564%

-Page 8 of 8 -



Item IV.c.iii.

FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
MEMORANDUM

TO: Steve Heacock
Chair- Convention/Arena Authority Finance Committee

FROM: Robert White
Fiscal Services Director

SUBJECT: Short-term Investment Available Cash Funds

DATE: November 18, 2004

The Authority currently has its money invested in two different products provided by Fifth Third
Bank. These investment vehicles include a Max Saver account with a $1 million minimum
investment, which currently pays an interest rate of 1.75% per annum. This rate is tied to the Fed
Funds rate. The balance of Authority funds is included in a “sweep” checking account which, as
of October 26™ was paying 1.6%.

The Kent County Treasurer currently provides a “pooled” investment account wherein local
governmental units deposit excess available cash with the Treasurer. In September, this account
was returning 1.943%, by October this annual earning rate had risen to 2.045%. The County
Treasurer makes investments primarily in laddered one-year certificates of deposit. This
“pooled” investment account is providing a rate of return of 25-30 basis points higher than the
rates currently being obtained by the Authority through Fifth Third Bank.

The “Local Government Investment Pool Act” (Act 121 of 1985) provides a vehicle whereby the
Authority may enter into an “investment pool agreement” with the County Treasurer. Attached is
a proposed agreement, drafted by counsel, which would provide the Authority for establishment
of this investment management relationship with the Kent County Treasurer. Also enclosed
following this agreement is a copy of the current investment policy as adopted by the Authority

Board.

I 'am available if there any questions concerning this matter.



Item IV.c.ii1.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
OF AN INVESTMENT POOL AGREEMENT WITH THE KENT
COUNTY TREASURER

Boardmember , supported by Boardmember ,

moved the adoption of the following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA")
has from time to time surplus funds available for investment; and

WHEREAS, the Kent County Treasurer (the "County Treasurer") has established a local
government investment pool (the "Pool") pursuant to the Local Government Investment Pool
Act, Act 121 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1985, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the County Treasurer is willing to permit the CAA to participate in the
Pool;

WHEREAS, the CAA's Articles of Organization and Bylaws as well as its enabling
legislation, the Convention Facility Authority Act, Act 203 of the Public Acts of Michigan of
1999 permits it to participate in the Pool; and

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions of the CAA's participation in the Pool are set forth
in an Investment Pool Agreement (the "Agreement"”) between the County Treasurer and the
CAA; and

WHEREAS, the CAA desires to participate in the Pool.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Agreement in the form presented at this meeting is approved and the
Chairman is authorized and directed to execute the Agreement for and on behalf of the CAA

approved as to form by the CAA's legal counsel.

GRAPIDS 99993-596 154654



2. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the
same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

YEAS: Boardmembers

NAYS: Boardmembers

ABSTAIN: Boardmembers

ABSENT: Boardmembers

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

Dated: November 24, 2004

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

CERTIFICATION

I, the undersigned duly qualified and acting Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary
of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the "CAA"), do hereby certify
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the CAA Board at a
regular meeting held on November 24, 2004, and that public notice of said meeting was given
pursuant to and in compliance with, Act 267 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1976, as
amended.

Dated: November 24, 2004

Susan M. Waddell
Administrative Manager/Recording Secretary

GRAPIDS 99993-596 154654



Item IV.c.iii.

INVESTMENT POOL AGREEMENT
THIS INVESTMENT POOL AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") made and
entered into as of November _, 2004, by and between the TREASURER OF KENT
COUNTY (“County Treasurer”) and the treasurer or chief fiscal officer of the GRAND
RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY (“Local Unit”) is
made with reference to the following:

A. The County Treasurer is authorized by resolution of the County Board of
Commissioners to establish a local government investment pool
(“investment pool”) pursuant to Section 3 of the Local Government
Investment Pool Act, being Section 129.143 of the Michigan Compiled
Laws, and to contract with the Local Unit for the deposit of money in the
investment pool; and

B. The treasurer or other chief fiscal officer of the Local Unit is authorized
by resolution of the governing body of the Local Unit to enter into a
contract with the County Treasurer for the deposit of money in the
investment pool pursuant to Section 3 of the Local Government
Investment Pool Act, being Section 129.143 of the Michigan Compiled
Laws.

C. The parties desire to set forth the terms and conditions regarding the
deposit of money in the investment pool in a written contract as required
by Section 5 of the Local Government Investment Pool Act.

D. The uniform contract upon which this Agreement is based has been

approved by the Michigan Department of Treasury.



NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this
Agreement:

1. Term. This agreement shall be effective from the date hereof until
terminated in accordance with Paragraph 13.

2. Deposit of Money in Investment Pool. The treasurer or other chief
fiscal officer of the Local Unit may deposit money with the County Treasurer for
placement in the investment pool. All money deposited must be “surplus funds.”
“Surplus funds” means money which belongs to or is under the control of the
Local Unit and is available for investment. “Surplus funds” does not include
money which is required by law or agreement with bondholders to be segregated
and invested in a specified manner. The County Treasurer shall not be
responsible for determining whether money deposited on behalf of the Local Unit
satisfies the definition of “surplus funds.”

Deposits shall be made by means of wire transfer of funds, check, direct
deposit, or other means acceptable to the County Treasurer. A deposit made in
person or by check shall be credited to the account of the Local Unit and begin to
accrue interest on the date it is received at the office of the County Treasurer;
provided, however, that a deposit received after 5 o’clock p.m. on a Friday, or any
time on a day that the office is officially closed, shall not be credited to the
account of the Local Unit or begin to accrue interest until the next business day
following the date of deposit. A deposit made by wire transfer of funds or by
direct deposit shall be credited to the account of the Local Unit and begin to

accrue interest on the date of deposit; provided, however, that the treasurer or



other chief fiscal officer of the Local Unit shall advise the County Treasurer by
telephone on the day of deposit of the amount deposited. If the treasurer or other
chief fiscal officer of the Local Unit fails to provide notice to the County
Treasurer by telephone on the day of deposit, the deposit shall not be credited to
the account of the local Unit or begin to accrue interest until the next business day
following the date of deposit.

At the time of deposit, or notice of deposit as the case may be, the

treasurer or other chief fiscal officer of the Local Unit shall advise the County
Treasurer of the approximate length of time for which the funds will be deposited
and of the designation, if any, of the particular fund to which the local unit would
like the deposit credited.
3. Management of Investment Pool. The County Treasurer shall manage,
invest, and reinvest funds accepted for deposit in the investment pool from the
Local Unit. The County Treasurer may, in his or her discretion, make similar
arrangements with other local units of government within the County and may
intermingle any of the Local Unit’s funds with the funds of the County or other
local units of government. The County Treasurer shall manage, invest or reinvest
the money in the investment pool in the same manner as surplus county funds
under Act No. 20 of the Public Acts of 1943, being Sections 129.91 to 129.93 of
the Michigan Compiled Laws, except that the County Treasurer shall not invest
any money in mutual funds.

The County Treasurer shall invest the money in the investment pool with

the degree of judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, that a



person of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercises in the management of
his or her own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probably safety of his or her capital as well as the probably income to be derived
from an investment of his or her capital.

The County Treasurer, may, but shall not be obligated to, take security for
the deposits or investments of the investment pool in the form of collateral, surety
bond, or another form of security.

4. Minimum Amount of Deposit. There is no minimum amount
required for deposit in the investment pool.

5. Minimum Period of Deposit. There is no minimum period of time
for which deposits must remain in the investment pool.

6. Withdrawals from Investment Pool. Subject to Paragraph 15
hereof, the treasurer or other chief fiscal officer of the Local Unit and his or her
authorized representatives, if any, which are named in the Addendum to this
Agreement, may request a withdrawal from the account of the Local Unit by
telephone, followed by written confirmation of such request. The Local Unit may
generally withdraw up to $25,000 from the investment pool without prior notice.
Such funds will be dispersed within 48 hours, unless prohibited by law; provided,
however, that dispersment may be delayed for up to seven (7) days depending
upon the cash flow of the investment pool. Withdrawals of amounts greater than
$25,000 shall be subject to the approval of the County Treasurer and shall only be
made after seven (7) days written notice to the County Treasurer of the intended

withdrawal, unless prohibited by law. In certain circumstances, the withdrawal

4-



may be approved and funds dispersed prior to expiration of the seven (7) day
notice period. The money withdrawn from the investment pool shall be
transferred to the Local Unit by wire transfer of funds, check or other means
acceptable to the County Treasurer and the treasurer or other chief fiscal officer of
the Local Unit.

7. Nature of Local Unit’s Interest in the Investment Pool. The Local
Unit’s interest in the investment pool is limited to the unwithdrawn amount
deposited with the County Treasurer plus a pro rata share of the earnings of the
investment pool or less a pro rata share of the losses of the investment pool. A
pro rata share shall be the ratio of the amount of money invested by the Local
Unit to the total amount of money invested through the investment pool. The
County Treasurer shall maintain a separate numbered account to record the total
amount of deposits, earnings, and withdrawals of the Local Unit and a separate
account for each fund designated by the local unit.

8. Computation of Earnings. The pro rata share of interest earned by the
Local Unit shall be calculated on a daily basis and shall be credited to the account
of the Local Unit on the first day of the subsequent month. Interest on any given
deposit shall begin to accrue on the date the deposit is credited to the account of
the Local Unit in accordance with Paragraph 2 hereof. Upon the withdrawal of
funds from the investment pool, interest shall accrue through the day preceding
the date the funds are dispersed.

9. Reports. The County Treasurer shall provide written reports to the

Local Unit within the first ten (10) business days of each month which specify the



total amount of the Local Unit’s deposits, earning, and withdrawals during the
previous monthly accounting period. Separate reports specifying the amount of
deposits, earnings, and withdrawals shall also be provided for each fund
designated by the Local Unit.
10 Liability. The County Treasurer shall not be liable to the Local Unit
for losses arising out of an error of judgment made in good faith by the County
Treasurer, or with respect to any action taken, or not taken, by him or her in good
faith in accordance with the direction of the treasurer or other chief fiscal officer
of the Local Unit or the direction of his or her authorized representative.
11.  Indemnification. The Local Unit agrees to hold the County and the
County Treasurer harmless from and against all liability, loss, cost or damage,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising from or incurred by the County in
good faith and acting pursuant to authority granted by this Agreement and the
Local Unit agrees to pay its proportionate share of any losses or debt balances that
may arise with respect to activities authorized by this Agreement.
12.  Representations and Warranties. The Local Unit and the treasurer or
other chief fiscal officer of the Local Unit represent and warrant to the County
that it has the full power, authority and legal right to enter and perform this
Agreement and that it has taken all necessary action to authorize the execution
and performance of this Agreement.

The County and the County Treasurer represent and warrant to the Local
Unit that it has the full power, authority and legal right to enter and perform this

Agreement and that it has taken all necessary action to authorize the execution

-6-



and performance of this Agreement. The County and County Treasurer further
represent and warrant to the Local Unit that the uniform contract upon which this
Agreement is based has been approved by the Michigan Department of Treasury.
13.  Default. If a default occurs in the payment of principal, interest, or
other income of an investment of the investment pool, the County Treasurer may
do one or more of the following:

a) Institute a proceeding to collect the matured principal, interest, or
other income.

b) Accept a compromise, adjustment, or disposition of the matured
principal, interest, or other income as the County Treasurer
considers advisable for the purpose of protecting the money
invested in the investment pool.

c) Accept a compromise or adjustment as to future payments of
principal, interest, or other income as the County Treasurer
considers advisable for the purpose of protecting money invested
in the investment pool.

14.  Order or Warrant. An order or warrant shall not be issued upon an
account of the Local Unit in an amount greater than the total of the account to
which that order or warrant applies. If an order or warrant for an amount greater
than the total of the account to which the order or warrant applies is issued and the
order or warrant is paid, the County Treasurer shall be personally liable under his

or her official bond for the overdraft resulting from the payment.



15.  Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 45
days written notice. The 45-day notice period may be accelerated upon the
mutual agreement of the County Treasurer and the treasurer or chief fiscal officer
of the Local Unit.

16. Modification. No modification, alteration, or amendment to this
Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and approved by resolution of the
Kent County Board of Commissioners and the governing body of the Local Unit.
Any modification, alteration, or amendment (other than a modification, alteration,
or amendment to the Addendum attached hereto) shall be filed with the Michigan
Department of Treasury.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as
of the day and year first above written.

KENT COUNTY

By:

Kenneth D. Parrish, Treasurer

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

By:

John H. Logie, Chairman



ADDENDUM
The Chairman of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority (“Local Unit”) hereby authorizes the following individual(s) to request
withdrawals from the Local Unit’s account in the investment pool:
Steven R. Heacock
Robert J. White
Jana Wallace

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

By:
John H. Logie, Chairman



Item IV .c.iii.

CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
INVESTMENT POLICY

To comply with Act 20 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1943, as amended

I. Purpose

It is the policy of the Convention/Arena Authority to invest its funds in a manner which will
provide the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash
flow needs of the Convention/Arena Authority, and comply with all State statutes governing the
investment of public funds.

II. Scope

This policy applies to all financial assets of the Convention/Arena Authority. These assets are
accounted for in the Operating, Capital Replacement Reserve and Capital Improvement Funds
and any new fund established by the Convention/Arena Authority.

IIL Objectives

The primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities shall be safety, liquidity, and
yield:

A. Safety Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of

capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to mitigate credit risk and interest
rate risk.

1. Credit Risk The Convention/Arena Authority will minimize credit risk, the
risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer, by:
Limiting investments to the safest types of securities

Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and
advisers with which the Convention/Arena Authority will do business

e Diversifying the investment portfolio so that potential losses on individual
securities will be minimized

C:\My Documents\CAA FINANCE COMMITTEEVNVEST, 'MENT POLICY DRAFT 06230001.doc

Page ] of 4



D
‘“u

2. Interest Rate Risk The Convention/Arena Authority will minimize the risk
that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in
general interest rates, by:

o Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell
securities on the open market prior to maturity

e Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities.

B. Liquidity The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all
operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated. This is accomplished by
structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet
anticipated demands (static liquidity). Furthermore, since all possible cash demands
cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active
secondary or resale markets (dynamic liquidity).

C. Yield The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a
market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the
investment risk constraints and liquidity needs. Return on investment is of secondary
importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above. The core of
investments are limited to relatively low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair
return relative to the risk being assumed. Securities shall not be sold prior to maturity
with the following exceptions:

e A security with declining credit may be sold early to minimize loss of principal
e A security swap would improve the quality, yield, or target duration in the portfolio
e Liquidity needs of the portfolio require that the security be sold

IV.Standards of Care

A. Prudence The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the
“prudent person” standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall
portfolio. Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and this
investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal

_ responsibility for an individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided
deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and the liquidity and the
sale of securities are carried out in accordance with the terms of this policy.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing,
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of
their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probably safety
of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.

C:\My Documents\CAA FINANCE COMMITTEEUNVESTMENT POLICY DRAFT 06230001.doc
Page 20f 4



“

B. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest Officers and employees involved in the investment
process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the proper
execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability
to make impartial decisions. Employees and investment officials shall disclose any
material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business. They shall
further disclose any personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the
performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall refrain from
undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom
business is conducted on behalf of the Convention/Arena Authority.

C. Delegation of Authority Management responsibility for the investment program is
hereby delegated to the Treasurer, who shall establish written procedures and internal
controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with this investment
policy. Procedures should include references to: safekeeping, delivery vs. payment,
investment accounting, repurchase agreements, wire transfer agreements,
collateral/depository agreements, and banking service contracts. No person may engage
in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this policy, and the
procedures established by the Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be responsible for all
transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities
of subordinate officials.

V. Suitable and Authorized Investment

(1)  The Treasurer is limited to investments authorized by Act 20 of 1943, as amended, and
may invest in the following:

A. Bonds, securities and other obligations of the United States, or an agency or
instrumentality of the United States '

B. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts, or depository receipts of a
financial institution, but only if the financial institution complies with subsection (2)

- C. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest classifications
established by not less than two standard rating services, and the debt matures not more
than 270 days after the date of purchase

D. Repurchase agreementé consisting of instruments listed in the subdivision (letter A.)

E. Bankers acceptances of United States banks

C:\My Documents\CAA FINANCE COMMITTEEUNVESTMENT POLIC Y DRAFT 0623000!.doc

Page 3 of 4



"S-'v

(2) A public corporation that invests its funds under subsection (1) shall not deposit or invest
the funds in a financial institution that is not eligible to be a depository of funds belonging to the
State under a law or rule of this State, or the United States.

V1. Safekeeping and Custody

All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase agreements and financial institution
deposits, entered into by the Treasurer shall be on a cash basis. Securities may be held by a third

party custodian designated by the Treasurer, and evidenced by safekeeping receipts as
determined by the Treasurer.

VII. Reporting

The Treasurer shall prepare an investment report at least quarterly, including a management
summary that provides an analysis of the status of the current investment portfolio and
transactions made over the last quarter. This management summary will be prepared in a manner
which will allow the Convention/Arena Authority to ascertain whether investment activities
during the reporting period conform to the investment policy. The report will be provided to the
full Board of the Convention/Arena Authority.

C:\My Documents\CAA FINANCE COMMITTEEUNYESTMENT POLICY DRAFT 06230001 .doc

Page 4 0f 4



Item IV.c.iv.

FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
MEMORANDUM

TO: Steve Heacock
Chair- Convention/Arena Authority Finance Committee

FROM:  Robert White£9%
Fiscal ServicesDirector

SUBJECT: Convention/Arena Authority (CAA)
Fiscal Year 2004 Comparison of Estimate to Actual Results

DATE: November 8, 2004

In June 23, 2004, the CAA Board of Directors adopted a budget for Fiscal Year 2005 (the year beginning
July 1, 2004). The material submitted to the board included an update of then current year (Fiscal Year
2004) revenue and expenditure estimates. That material, including information submitted by the Facility
Manager (SMG) and Administrative expenses, is detailed in the attached documents and summarized as
follows:

o Table A - SMG Representatives provided an updated estimate of Fiscal Year 2004 showing a
combined facility operating loss of ($96,630). The actual year-end result, based on audit,
disclosed a positive operating margin $245,318. By comparison, the adopted Fiscal Year 2005
Facility Manager Operating Budget disclosed a projected combined operating margin of
$126,232.

e Table B — Combines the net activity of the Facility Manager with other miscellaneous revenues
and administrative expenses of the Authority. Information on this table is summarized as follows:

e The originally adopted Fiscal Year 2004 Budget, projected a draw on fund balance (reserves)
of $1.5 million. At mid-year this deficit was reduced by $1 million when a Capital Project
Budget update eliminated the FY2004 transfer from the operating account.

e On June 23, 2004 staff estimated a draw on fund balance of ($379,000). Based on pre-audit
balances, it is projected the Convention/Arena Authority will have ended its Fiscal Year 2004
with the addition to fund balance of an amount slightly in excess of $150,000. The
improvement in financial position was generated from a $350,000 increase in facility
manager operating performance and $100,000 of additional parking/land lease revenues.

e On the basis of the revised Fiscal Year 2004 performance and the summary of the Fiscal Year
2005 Budget, it is projected that the Authority will close its current year operations with a
projected fund balance of $5.3 million.

e Table Bl — Provides additional footnote explanations for budget balances disclosed in Table B.



CAA Budget
Page 2

e Table C - Provides an updated overview of projected capital replacement reserve balances and
funding which is available to support same both currently and in the near term future. It is
projected that the balance available in the Capital Replacement Reserve account will grow to an
amount slightly in excess of $8 million by June 30, 2005. Additional details concerning the status
of the Capital Improvement Budget and source of additional capital replacement funds will be
disclosed in a separate correspondence.

Overall, the Convention/Arena Authority maintains a balanced current year budget with moderate
operating reserve balances and reasonable capital replacement reserves through at least Fiscal Year 2007.
I am available if there are any questions concerning this material.



Table A

Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
SMG Facilities Budget
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004 & 2005

FY2004 FY2005
Budget Estimate ® Audit Adopted ®
VanAndel Arena
Operating * Revenues $ 4,741,584 $ 4,653,975 $ 4,783,850 $ 4,798,695
* Expenses - Facilities (3,043,762) (2,932,237) (3,025,198) (3,046,160)
- Management Fees (234,300) (232,252) (321,966) (237,361)
Net Operating Income $ 1,463,522 $ 1,489,486 $ 1,436,686 $ 1,515,174
DeVos Place
Operating * Revenues $ 2,380,958 $ 2,419,461 $ 2,628,336 $ 3,246,912
* Expenses - Facilities (3,745,085) (3,773,325) (3,537,976) (4,398,493)
- Management Fees (234,300) (232,252) (281,728) (237,361)
Net Operating Income $ (1,598,427) _$ (1,586,116) § (1,191,368) _§ (1,388,942)
Net Available to CAA:
VanAndel Arena $ 1,463,522 § 1,489,486 $§ 1,436,686 $ 1,515,174
DeVos Place (1,598,427) (1,586,116) (1,191,368) (1,388,942)
$ (134905) $ (96,630) $ 245318 $§ 126,232
Notes:

M) Adopted - June 25, 2003
@ Board Agenda - June 23, 2004

R.J. White
11/8/2004



Table B

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention Arena Authority

Revenues:

SMG Transfers

Facility Operation (Net)

Utility Reimbursement

DeVos Place® Parking
Land Lease
Interest on Investments

Miscellaneous

Expenditures:

Utilities

Parking Management
Pedestrian Safety
Administration
Capital Replacement
Capital Construction

Net Excess (Deficit)
Net Assets - Beginning of Year
Net Assets - End of Year

R.J. White

Operating-Capital Replacement Budget
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2004 & 2005

FY2004 FY 2005

Budget Estimate Audit Adopted
$ (134901) $ (96,630) $ 245318 $ 126,232
1,962,466 2,012,826 1,799,628 2,283,450
1,827,565 1,916,196 2,044,946 2,409,682
108,163 108,163 190,945 646,500
107,000 107,000 131,675 123,000
32,000 22,000 24,800 22,000
8,000 20,000 18,794 15,000
2,082,728 2,173,359 2,411,160 3,216,182
1,962,466 2,012,826 1,799,628 2,283,450
93,273 67,151 78,497 257,011
95,000 61,746 72,745 86,000
239,396 225,145 191,566 233,769
185,000 185,000 112,906 193,489
1,000,000 - - -
3,575,135 2,551,868 2,255,342 3,053,719
(1,492,407) (378,509) 155,818 162,463
5,000,599 5,000,599 5,000,599 5,156,417

$ 3,508,192

$ 4,622,090

$ 5,156,417

$ 5,318,880

1)
2

3
)
)
&)



Table Bl

Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authorities
Operating/Capital Replacement Budget

Notes to Financial Statement:

m

The Authority entered into a "Parking Operating and Maintenance" agreement with the City on January
28, 2004. The term of the agreement presently runs through June 30, 2005. The facility first came
available for use on January 23, 2004 with 330 spaces. Additional portions of the facility will become
available over the course of the next several months with a final total 690 spaces available by March,
2005. The current estimated FY2005 user rates are noted as follows:

FY2004 FY2005 (est.)
Monthly $ 125.75 $ 128.00
Monthly/GOVT/SMG 40.00 35.00
Half-hour rate 0.95 0.95
Daily 8.75 8.75
Event 6.25 6.25

@

©))

Q)

(%)

In November, 2002 the Authority entered into a "Parking Operating and Maintenance Agreement”
with the City of Grand Rapids for a 149 space surface parking lot located immediately south of the
VanAndel Arena. The term of this contract runs through June 30, 2010. The City-Auto Parking
System pays the Convention Arena Authority a "Usage Fee" which is adjusted each year, at fiscal year
end, based on actual revenues and expenses generated by the facility.

The Authority pays all electricity, steam, natural gas and water/sewer bills for the VanAndel Arena
and DeVos Place.

The Convention Arena Authority participates with the City-Auto Parking System and City-Downtown
Development Authority in funding of "Pedestrian Safety" during events at the VanAndel Arena and
DeVos Place. The total proposed budget for this activity during FY2005 amounts to $237,163. Based
on a formula previously approved by the parties, the Convention Arena assumes liability for 36.28%
of the cost.

The administrative portion of the budget provides for staff wages/benefits, accounting/auditing
services, liability insurance premiums, legal services, downtown improvement district-special
assessments, and other miscellaneous.

R.J.White
11/8/2004

Page 2



Table C
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention Arena Authority
Proposed Reserve for Capital Replacement
Accounting for Deposits/Withdrawals

Deposits

Required Projected
Fiscal Van Andel Capital Year End Year End
Year Arena DeVos Place® Interest Acct. Draws Balance Balance
2000 $ - $ - 8 - 8 - $1,055462 @ 3 -
2001 546,364 - 52,265 (58,124) 1,595,967 -
2002 562,754 - 31,497 (452,053) 1,738,165 -
2003 579,637 - 11,059 (216,399) 2,112,462 -
2004 597,026 - 8,000 (185,000) 2,717,488 2,156,417
2005 614,937 . 50,000 (193,489) 3,188,936 ¥ 8,129,445
2006 633,385 1,720,000 @ 100,000 5,642,321
2007 652,387 1,771,600 100,000 8,166,308
2008 671,958 1,824,748 100,000 10,763,014
2009 692,117 1,879,490 100,000 13,434,621
2010 712,881 1,935,875 100,000 16,183,377

Notes:
(1 Annual set-aside established by DDA as 1% of Van Andel Arena® construction cost with an annual index
of 3%.

(@) Balance transferred from DDA on July 7, 2000.
() Established at 1% of construction contract (GMP) with a 3% inflation index per annum.

4) Based on the adopted budget, the CAA would end its FY2005 activities with a balance of $5,318,880.
After setting aside a minimum "operating reserve" of $3,000,000, the CAA is left with a balance of
$2,318,880, which is approximately $.9 million short of a reasonable funding goal. Assuming the capital
project budget is adjusted as recommended in a separate memo dated November 15th and improvement
project contingent balance remains intact, at closeout, the estimated capital replacement reserve would
increase to a total of $8,129,445 ($2,318,880 + $3,000,000 + $2,810,565) at June 30, 2005.

R.J. White
11/15/2004



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item V
(Revised)
DATE EVENT EC ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Nov 17 | DDA MW | Banquet A 8:30A-1P Meeting
Thur, Nov 18 | Griffins vs Chicago CL Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey game
W.S. Reed MW Banquet C/D | 11:00 AM Set-up
2P-7P Product show
Grand Valley State University [ MW | Banquet B 12:00 PM Set-up
6P-8P Business night
Fri, Nov 19 Cher AH Arena 9:00 AM Load-in
2:00 PM Chair set
6:30 PM Doors
7:40P-8:30P | Village People
8:30P-9P Intermission
9:05P-10:45P | Cher
10:00 PM Load-out
Cher MW Banquet B/C | 4:00 AM Set-up
7:30A-9:30P | Crew catering
Sat, Nov 20 Griffins vs Cleveland CL Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey game
Griffins MW | Banquet C 2:00 PM Set-up
6P-7:30P Surprise birthday party
Sun, Nov 21 Available
Mon, Nov 22 | Available
Tue, Nov 23 Available
Wed, Nov 24 | Select Bank Classic CL Arena 11A-7P Team shoot-a-rounds
Thur, Nov 25 | Closed — Thanksgiving Day
Fri, Nov 26 Select Bank Classic CL Arena 12:00 PM Hope vs. Cornerstone B-ball game
2:00 PM Calvin vs. Aquinas B-ball game
Griffins vs Chicago AH Arena 6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey game
Sat, Nov 27 Select Bank Classic CL Arena 6:00 PM Consolation B-ball game
8:00 PM Championship B-ball game
Sun, Nov 28 | Griffins vs Cincinnati AH Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
3:00 PM Doors
4P-6:30P Hockey game
6:30P-7P Post-game skate
Mon, Nov 29 | Available
Tue, Nov 30 Available
Wed, Dec | Available
Thur, Dec 2 Available
Fri, Dec 3 Available
Sat, Dec 4 Griffins vs Utah CL Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
6:30 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey game
Sun, Dec 5§ Available
Mon, Dec 6 Available
Tue, Dec 7 Available
Wed, Dec 8 Michael W. Smith CL Arena 7:00 PM Performance
Thur, Dec 9 Available
Fri, Dec 10 Martina McBride CL Arena 7:30 PM Performance




Sat, Dec 11 Grand Valley State University | AH Arena 9A-1P Commencement Ceremony
Griffins vs Chicago CL Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
4:30P Doors
5P-7P Kenowa Hills hockey game
7:00 PM Doors
8P-10:30P Hockey game
Sun, Dec 12 Available
Mon, Dec 13 | Available
Tue, Dec 14 Available
Wed, Dec 15 | Available
Thur, Dec 16 | Available
Fri, Dec 17 Available
Sat, Dec 18 Griffins vs Cleveland CL Arena 10A-12:30P Teams practice
2:30P Doors
3P-5P Grandville vs Portage Central hockey game
6:00 PM Doors
7:30P-10P Hockey game
Sun, Dec 19 TSO AH Arena 3:00 PM Performance
8:00 PM Performance




r0/91/11

||BH 2ourwIolad SOAd = Ad
O~V slleH ¥qiyxg = O-V HH

Ba1Y AI9][BD) pURID) = 00
H-V swooy Sunasiy NoosA) = H-V O
-V swooy Sunasjy Adjeo pueln = -V D

STWNSTY ONILLITN dsi-l
41IS-440 HONNI d0¢:Tl
§7 10j 21enbg mo|joH :dn 33§ 46 ST/ M dNOL d01:C1
ONILIIN v0¢:-01
G 'dOUEpUANY pajelnnsy a1 TVARIEY 44VLS % LSIND Vb6 YO ANOVITNOINN LIAIIYD NVOIHIIN
TVSIVIHIY d01-d0¢-L
TVSYVIHIY d9-d0¢t:¢
AV ONVH JIN d€-d?l Ad ALTVDISSVTID ~ OSYD
LNO IAON d9-dv NOILY LTJd¥dLNI
008 :eduEpusny pajewlsy mr NOILNIANQOD dv-VL vV Hi J04 NOILVIDOSSY TVNOLLVN 81 AON "'SYNHL
TINLAVLIA
/ STANTONOD NOILV.LNISTUd dog:¢
SIWNSTI NOILV.LNISTAd doe'l
HONNT X0d ONIHIOM dz!
NOILVLINISIUd V6
EIOINN-EN
FOVITATE ONINIYOW / NI1D3d
DNILVAIS %2 NOILVILSIOTY VSyiL
00¢ :3duepuany pajewlisy R:El 413TdNOD SI dN L3S WOOA Vi 4-V O VZNVOVAVYLXT iHSId
TYSYVIHIY d01-d0¢t:L
TVSAvIHIY d9-doc-€
AV NI JAON dz-vol Ad Al TVIISSVTIO — OS¥D
NOILV13dd¥d.LNI
008 :2ouepudly pajewisy MI NOILLNIANOD d9-vVL YV H3 JOdJ NOILVIDOSSY TVNOILLVN L1 AON 'ddm
NINLIVIIA LHOINAINW
FARIYY S1SIND d0g:6
(L '9douepuly pajewinsyg Q£ IVARIYY 44VLS dé g-vo NOILLdIOTY JINVE VORIFNOD
d3 | dN LIS JdVLIS % NI JAON AV dt J-vD VZNVOVAVYLXE iHSId
LNO IAON VZi-d6 LS NOAT/AQ
(S1-11J0s8) 0991 :Iuno) 32O xog JONVNYO4Y3d dS0:6-d0¢-L
N3dO ONILVIS dL
NIdO A8401 d0¢-9
N3dO S¥00Qa 3qISLNO d9 Ad
MTYD AVOY Y04 ¥3NNIC dog:s WY 3SOANdILTINN
TVYSYVIHIY dogis-de Ad
MIYO avOd Y04 HONN'T di-dcl WY ISO4INdILTNN
A3IAVOTINN ST INGS INO Vol LS NOAT/AQ
MITYD AVOY JOd LSV vIdd vo0¢:6 WY 3SOAINILTINN
NI JAONW *xxxSAD0A 1S NOATIHL OL SSADIV
/AVOTINA SYADNAL ANNOS QIIN TTIM SHOMYL NOILLDONAOUd
ALVIOdIOI/ANOHINAS V38 LS NOAT/AQ ANV ADINYL ANOHANAS FHLuwx
MAVd %
AV JARIYY ADNYL [ ® SISSNY € LHDINYIAO NHOI NOLMIN VIAITO - OS4D
NOILVY 1Iddd3dLNI
MI NI JAON ad.L vV H3 YO NOLLVIDOSSY TVNOILLVN 91 AON 'S3Nd
NOILDNYLSNOD/SNOILVIIJO 24 NOILONNA JNIL WOOY LNIAA JLva

Y00T AVAA — ATAddM

HO\

Yimng

1a




0/91/11

[[eH 9doueunof1ad soAd = Ad
O~V slleH ¥quyxg = D~V HA

Baly AI3][en) pueln) = DN
H-V swooy Sunady Yoo[sAQ = H-V O
-V swiooy Sunasy A1djjen) pueln = J-V D

(S1-113058) $pS| : WN0D RYJO Xog JONVINIOIYId d01:01-dO€:L
N3dO ONILVIS dL ++59100d
NAdO A99071 d0g9 NOATLY AIAVOTINN INTS [xxx
N340 $300d IAISLNO d9
b:\4 (IAFS 1 A191SSOd) NI IAQON ds-v8 AQ SYIDNAOUd FHL £2 AON 'S3NL
FINLAVdAA dz
TINLOId dl
HONNT/ TVAIYYY LNIANLS NOON
¢ -sdouEpuany pajewnsy | g3 TVAIIYY ddVLS VOt 4-vD dIdl vav Nvadodnd
w3 1GVIIVAYV 39 LSN SdITS 004
HL10d - $300d NOAT LV LHDINAIN
-INd1 @IAVOTINN SADNYL INIS 8 wux
b\ (SINAS 8) NI JAON LHOINAIN-dT 1S NOAT/Ad SYIONA0Ud FHL 27 AON 'NOW
*#:100d
NOATLY 3AVOTINN INIS 1 xxx
(IN3s D
AV (N1 IAOW) 1TTVD IONVAQYV d9-v6 LS NOAT/AQ SYIONA0Yd FHL iZ AON 'NNS
100 IAON ZAR ] MO0d LS NOAT/ Ad
(S1-11 30 SB) $S6 : N0l adyjQ xog FONVYWEO0LYd do1-ds
NAdO ONILVIS dog:L
Lviagdn dogiL-dL Ad »++LNO
NFdO AddO1 dsti9 DNILYES 'HOYO | FAOW OL 3004 "LS NOATOL SSIDIV
N3dO $¥00d AAISLNO dog:9 A3AN TTIM ADNYL ANOHAWASxxx
IOVLS NO
b\ TVSYVAHTY LSILYY 1S3aND d1-vé6 Ad Al TYDIISSVTD — OSUD
FITIEANT AYVSYTAINNY
) 13nONvE iIvo wiSL STIDAVI SAIdVY ANVYD
1N0 IAON NOILY LIddITLNI
M ONILITN IAd Y04 NOLLVIDOSSY TYNOILLVN 07 AON "LVS
(S1-11 30 s8) Z0ZI :Iuno) 3dyQ xog FJONVINIOLdAd d01-d8
N3dO DNILVAS d0€:L
Lvdagdn dogiL-dL
N3dO A9901 dst9 DONILVIS 'HOYO
NAdO SY00d IdISLNO dog9
IOVIS NO
b\ TVSEVIHTY LSILYV 1S3ND d1-vé Ad ALTVYDISSV1D - OSUD
NOILYLIIdYILNI
mr 1NO FIAOW adgl v HI Y04 NOILVIDOSSY TYNOILVN 61 AON Tdd
iiiLNIAT YIM3IN V SI SIHL ONILITN adlL a-vo ONILIIN ALID
14vddd S1saNo d€-d0g:T

Y007 AVAA — ATAdIM

HOV'id




0/91/11

J[eH 2oueuLIOlad SOA] = Ad
D-v slieH #quuxg = DO~V HH

eary Als[[en pueln = 0NH
H-V swooy Sunad oo[laQ =H-V O
J-V swooy Sunsay As[[en) pueld = 4-V D

1IN0 JAON VOES-d0t'6 31000 NOAVAQ
1SVD 404 ¥ANNIG d6 4SOdUNdLLTINN
(S1-11J058) 78 :3Un0) RO X0g JONYWHOI4Id d01:6-d0€9
N3O ONILY3S d9
N3O A8€0T dog:s xex31GVIVAY
N340 S¥00d 3dISLNO ds a8 LSN SdITS %004 HLOd
(S1-11J0'se) 6801 :UN0D )0 X0g JONYWYOL43d dov:€-d1 "MD0Q LITULS NOAT LV V§-d6 WOUd
N3O ONILVES dog:z! LNO QVOT TTM SHONUL INFS 6 xxx
N3dO AS€07T dzl
AV N3O S¥00d 3dISLNO vOogii1 AQ S¥IONAOUd FHL 87 AON ‘NS
(SI-11J0'Se) 8SE1 + N0 LY X0g JONVAROI¥Ad d0v:01-d8
N2dO ONILYAS dog:L
N3O Ag€01 de
N340 S300d 3AISLNO d0g:9
(S1-11J05¥) 986 :1uno) YO X0 JONVNHOLYAd dov't-d?
N3O ONILY3S do€:1
N2dO Ag80T dl
A4 N340 $¥00d 3dISLNO dog:z Ad S¥30NAO¥d THL LT AON'LVS
(SI-11JO'5) E0ET -3un0D LJO Xog FDONVINNOLNAd d0v°01-d8
N3dO ONILY3S dog:L
N3dO A8807T de
AV N3O S¥00d 3AISLNO d0g:9 Ad SYIONAOYUd FHL
®aaso1d
FYUV SADIJJ0 NINAY NS
- MVIUE ONIAIDSHNVHL 97 AON 'T¥d
13NONVE O°VO'VHE | LINONVE STMULSININ ¥TLLO¥L 1IN
(ST-11JO Se) $89 - 1UN0D 3dUJO Xog FONVANYOLUId d01:01-dOEL
NZdO DNILYAS dL
N3dO A8807 dog9
AV N340 $¥00d 3dISLNO d9 AQ SYFONAOUd FHL
©adso1d
SAD1440 FALLVULSININGY OWS
- ONIAIOSMNVHL ST AON 'S¥NHL
NI JAON O-vVO'VHI | LINONVE SAMULSININ ¥ILLOYL 1IN
(ST-11JOSE) 6£71 -3un0d RYJO X0 FONVNYOLUAd d01:01-d0EL
NZdO ONILYAS de
N3O A€€0T d0g?9
MV N340 S400d 3dISLNO 9 AQ $YIONQOUd FHL 7 AON ‘d3M
TANLIV4AA dog:1
HONNT/ TYARIYY LN3ANLS NOON
¢_toouepusny pajewnsy | @ TVAINEY 4dV.LS vogiil 4-vO dI¥L VAV NV3dOuN3

00T AVIA — ATAdEIM

HOVid




PO/9I1/T1

([BH 2ouewIojad soA2d = Ad

BaLY AI3[[en) pueln = DN
H-V swooy Sunlasp Joo[IdA) = H-V O

D-V Sl[EH ¥qyxg = D-V HA 4-V swooy Junesiy A1sj[en pueln = 4-v O
RIvad Ad AIMIOVADILNN SLNISTAd LITTVE AD
OdX3 LINIVIN WIVI ANV
NI-FAON d-v HY ATAVLIOIA "LINAd SIAVT LVIID 9 03d 'NOW
(S1-11 Jo se) 88 :1uno) O xog AONVINIOLY3d dZ Ad YIADVADLNN SINISTAUd LITTIVE UD
OdX3 LIMIVIN WIVI ANV
NI-JAON d-v H3 A79VLIDIA "LINYd SAAVT LVIID
FONTHTANOD YILNIM SAIdVY ANVED § 23d 'NNS
ALdVd
13NONVE qa-v o AVAITOH FJHONOL ¥ d1L110734
(S1-11Jose) 61 ¢ :uno) ad0YjQ xog FONVINIOIYad d0¢:L
(S1-11J0se) L6¢ :1uno)) adYy3Q xog AV AONVINIOIITd dZ Ad YIANOVIILNN SINISIUd LITTIVE AD
FONTAFTINOD YILNIM SAIdVI ANVYD ¥ 23d "LVS
(S1-11 Jo se) pSp :uno) 30yjQ xog AV FIONVINIOIIAd d0¢:L Ad ATAIVADLNN SINISTAL LITIVE AD
HONTIFANOD YTLNIM SAIdVY ANVID €234 144
ONILLITN an ALNLILSNI 343M0d AINTd TYNOILYN
AV TVSAVIHTY Ad YIADVIDLNN SINISTUd 1ITTVE dD 7030 'SYNHL
ONILIIN ad JLNLILSNI ¥43MO0d dIN1d TYNOILVN
AV TVSAVIHTA Ad ATAOVIDLAN SINISTAd LI TIVE AD 1 03 'dam
ONILIIN aon JLNLLLSNI 43MO0d AINTd TYNOILVN
«=xSAD00
‘LS NOAT LV S440 40¥d ITdILTNN
TVSYVIHTY d0l —dL AV TTIM AONYL LTIV s
AV NI JAON d9-v8 Ad YIADIVADLNAN SINISTAd LITTVE UD 0£ AON 'SanN.L
NI JAON ao JLNLILSNI ¥3M0d dINTd TYNOLLYN
#»*SA00d
LS NOAT.LV S440 40¥A FTdILTNNW
TVSAVIHTY d0l —dL IAVIN TTIM AONYL LATTVH#sx
AV NI JAON d9-Vv8 Ad AADVAILNN SINISTUd LITTIVE AD 67 AON 'NOW
MO
LNO AVOT Y04 YANNIA vOee-vT JSONANILTNN

Y00C IVIA — ATAIIM

HOVid




P0/91/11

[IeH aoueuLIO)ad SOASQ = Ad

D~V SlIBH Hqiyxq =

J-V Hd

BAIY AI9[[BD) PURID) = OO
H-V swooy Sunesjp JoosA) = H-V O
J-V swooy Sundgn A1ajen puel) = -y H

£1 090 'NOW
&l ALdVd
el AL¥Vd SYWLSIYHD oHd SYWLSIYHO SST4d SAIdVY ANVED
(S1-11J0'S®) I8y :wno) dYO X0g | AV FONVINYO¥3d dz AQ | ¥IXOVMOLON SLNISTYd LITTVE ¥
1N0 IAOW ONILFIN
vV 301A¥AS dIHSYOM 4-¥D O-VH3 TVNNNV 30IA¥3S 004 NOGIOD 21 4d 'NNS
(SI-1TJO'SE) €97 - ur0) 354jO X0g JONVINYOJY3d dog°L
(s1-11Jose) 1€ :wmop o xog | NV FONYNYO¥3d dz AQ | ¥EMOVHOLAN SINISIWd 1371V 4O
HV O DNILFIN
v ONLLIIW VD ‘O-VHI TVANNY 301A¥ES 004 NOQ¥O0D 11030 "LVS
(ST-11J0'58) [0 : un0) 334}0 Xog GONVNYO4¥ad doE'L
(s1-11Jose) :wnopdyoxog | AV FONVNIOL¥3d vol AQ | ¥EMOVHOLNN SLNISINd 1317vE ¥
0dXd LIMAVIN WEVd ANV
a NOON 21 A8 LNO-SAOW g-v Ha 318V.LIDFA "LINYA STNYT LVI™O
¥ ONILIIW VO£:01-V0E'8 vO ONILIZN YIOVNVIN ALID
HVO ONILTIN
AV NI JAOW VD ‘O-VHI TVNNNY 301A¥3S OO NOQHOD 01034 "4
0dXd LINYVN WIVd ANY
a NOILNIANOD HV 0 '4-VD '8V HI 318V.L309A "LINY4 SIAVT LYIIO
ONILFIN
MV NI JAOW 4v0 IYNNNY 301A¥3S G004 NOQ¥OD
(SI-11JOSE) ppL1 :wno) DO o8 | AV JONVINYOJ¥Ed AQ HVISSIN 6 090 'SYNHL
0dXd LYYW WaVd ANV
a NOLLNIANOD H-V 04V D gV Ha 319VL303A ‘LINY4 STNVT LYTID
(S1-11J058) 67p1 :1n0) 220 xog | AV JONVINYO4¥ad AQ HVISSIN 8030 ‘dam
0dX3 LAY W3Vd ANV
a NOLLNIANOD H-V 04V D '8~V Ha 319V.L3DFA "LINY4 STNVT LVIYD
AV NI-JAOW AQ HVISSIW £03d 'sanL

Y00 dVHA — ATAIddM

g2oVid




FACROGH,RFT Fromnter Availability Repoit 1118704 Pages
GRARND RAFIDGS CORPLEX

FRENA

DEC 2004 i A R B S

oL - WED

02 - THU

63 - FRI

04 - GAT EFIRTE M

39 - Sl

{e ~ M

07 - TUZ

08 - WEX CONCERY  LC2

39 - ThY

16 - FRI CONCERT [8]

il - 547 SPORTS  £od (10
IR-HOUSE [0 (12

)
HeN
12 - Glk

13 - 0N

4 - TR

15 - ueh

16 - THY

17 - FRI

18 - 54T griRTs LI

19 - GuN COMZERT LD

20 - #hw

21 - ThE

22 - D

3 - THY

24 - RI

25 - 5AT

26 - SN SPORTS L7
27 - BN
28 - TuE GFORTE LLT

29 - WD
30 - TH
3 - FRI SPORTS [T
JAH 200E
(1 - 8AT
G2 - =i
03 - My
ng - TUE

05 - Uth +FARLLY & [
0g - THU + FAMILY § LES
07 - FRI FERILY § [D)
08 - AT FARLLY § (T3
09 - SN FaRILY § [D]
10~ M - FAMILY 5§ (B2

- TLE
12 - R
1% - Thu
i4 - FRI SFORTS 102
15 - gaT SFORTE  [I2
14 - 5UR
17 ~ s
18 - 1K
19 - el
24 - THU CONCERT 77
2 - FRI BFORTS I3
22 - 5T CouCes™ 57



FECLRODHLRFT Fromaler fvailabilily Reportl 11718/¢4  Facel

LRANDU RAPIRS COMFLEX

Jak 2008 e e s o st o et e
MISCELLA 77

23 - St

24 - fdl

25 - TLE

26 - HED CONCERT
27 - Tk CGNCERT
8 - FRI SPORTS
27 - 8a7 grORTS
I - 5L FAMILY :
31 - Mk &FORTS
FER 2008

01 - TUE

5 Iy
32 - wrb

Eormt ey o
t bed g L bt

(S ¥
]

1

L S e T aae B oo T S
|

¢3 - THU +FSIILY 5 M
G4 - FRI FeMILY 5 (72
05 ~ SAT FARILY & T3
G4 - SUN FAMILY § 77
07 - kDN - FARILY 8 [T
08 - Tt

09 - KD GRORTS LB
16 - T #ISCELLA [T3
11 - R SFORTS [0
12 - &7 FaMiLy § (i
13 - SUn Farlly & [
i4 - MUN

a - T CONCERY  L[E3
14 ~ WD

17 - THU LN
8- {0
19 - gAT
- Bl
21 - MEY
2é - D
23 -k
36 - THY CONCERT 3
25 - FRI SFGRTE LW
26 - aAT SFORTS  LIC
27 - EiM SRORIS I
8 - kil

KAR 2005

gL - T COnCERT  CIC
£2 - LED SFCGRTE [I3
9% - Tl FARILY & 070
04 - FRI FANTLY § T3
03 - AT FAMILY 5 (73
06 - Guk

07 - HiN

08 - TUE

09 - UED SRORTS I
10 - Thy

il - FRI 3
12 - 8AT 5
i3 - 5Ud GrORTS  [RD
14 - K CORCERT LT3
15 - T CONCERT

[SIK
[L]
[n

bt |

2R W7

i)
e

bt B (]

wi o 03

o

[Ex I ]

ro
[l

P



FACROOMRFTY Fromales fwailability Repord 11718703 Faoel

GRAND RAFIIS COMPLEX

ARENA
ﬁﬁ": 20 5 vty s o e e 4y et e ot g e R Y .
- kIR CONCERT  [77

17 - THG CORLERT [T

id - TRI SFORTS [IC

19 - GAT COWCERT L83
COWCERT LT

20 - SN SFORIS LI

3 - HiN

23 - T CONCERT M

33 - vl + GF13TS 03
24 - THU SFORTS  LE]
25 - FRI SFORTS  ILC
24 - BAT SFORTS  IE]
37 - GuN - GrORTS  LID
28 - i CONCERT 012
29 - TiE COMCERT (T2

30 - WED SFGRTS  LD3
- TR CoNCERT LTI
AR 2005

01 - FRI SPdRTS  LO7
G2 - GAT SPORIS LI
33 - SR ardR7s il

04 - MON

05 - TUE + FeMILY § £h0

06 - Wl FaRILY § [0

07 - Tl FaMily 5 {2

¢8 - FRI FARkILY § £

be - 98T FadILY 5 LI
8

16~ SE FARILY & [T

11 - RN - FAMILY 5 (3

12 - TUE CokCERT LTD

i3 - KED COmCERT L7

14 - T4 [ONCERY LT3

1§ - FRI GRORTS L0

14 ~ BA7 SPCRT:  LD]

i7 - BN CONCERT £73

18 - NG

i - e

20 - WED

21 - TR

22 - Fal

23 - 5T SpFGATE 00

24 - SN CORCERY IT]

2 - KN CONVERTE LT

26 - THE CONVENTT 1]

7 - kD CONVENTT (71

28 - THY CORCERT [T

29 - FRI

30 - 5AT IN-BRUSE [C] (130
SPURTS LD (21607

o

FAY 2005
61 - SU
92 - Ml
03 - TUE SFECTAL LD
04 - HET
05 - THY



FACRODMLRAT

MaY

46 -
pa-

5o -

07 -
10 -
i -
12 -
13 -
14 -
15 -
14
17 -
g -
19 -
2 -

21 -
& -
22 -
24 -
M

T .
s

2005
FRI
GAT
S
HON
TUE
WED
THY
FRI
GAT
Slik

- Ml

Tz
WED
THU
FRI
CAT
SUH
MOw

i
T\.":I.

- ke

THY

- FRI

8 - GAT
27 - GUN
FARERN T
3 - T
iy 2005
01 - LET
02 - ThY

{3 -~
o4 -
s -

04 -
07 -
8 -

e -
0o~
11 -

12 -
13 -
i4 -
15 -

14 -
17 -
18 -
19 -

Fil
oAt
SN
4
T4E
kel
Tht!
FRI
SaT
Sl
RE
e
WED
Tl
FRI
aRT

N L N
£\

21 - TUE
- D
23 - TH
24 - BRI
25 - GAT
36 - Bl

27 - H

28 -

ARERA

BFCRTS

EFORTS

SRarTS

.
Srunity

SFCRTE

COMVERT

CORVENTT
COMVENTT
CONVENTT

GFOR1S

CONVENTT

ol

[1]

[
m

r

[Bd
a3
[rJ
[Ed

7

Fromoler fvailability Repord

GRAND RePIDT TONPLEX

11718764 Fagel



FAC ROOM, SR T Presoter fyailabilily Reporl e Faon:
EraRT REFIDG COFFLEX

ARERA

J“N 2005 et R B b i b e s o e | B
7 - WER
30~ THY
JUL 20665
01 - FRI
02 - 847
03 - 8LM
04 - KO
65 ~ Tue
06 - WED
07 ~ THi
08 ~ FRI
G7 ~ 841
10 - S
11 - rO
i7 - TUE
13 - WED
14 - Thy
15 - FRI
14 - SAT
17 - SuM
18 - HGM
19 - TUE
20 - kEn
21 - Thij
22 - FRI
23 - 8a7
24 -~ S
25 ~ MW
26 - TUE
27 - WED
28 - THl
29 - FRI
3 - GAT
31 - Sun
HUG 2005
Gl ~ MR
02 ~ TuE
03 - UEL CONCERT IT2
04 ~ THG
(5 ~ FRY CONCERT LT3
ng - GAT
¢7 - GuM
B - M
49 - TUE
i - KED
11 - Thy
i2 - FRI
13 - GaT
14 - Sl
15 - KoM
16 - Tk
17 - WER
18 - THY
19 - FRI

20 - GAT



FAC.ROCK.RPT

3 ¥
B s

R AN B o I U SN R N SV
RN = L B S I S

L I )
LS i = x

¢l

i
——

GEF 2

I

04

ne
Wl

06 -

07
(3
09
10
11
12
I

14

e
]

16 -

i7

8 -

1%

- 5K

26 - TUE
21 - WD
23 - TRU
37 - FRY
24 - EAT
25 -+ SN
26 ~ MOk
97 - TUE
28 - kgD
2% o T
&7 [l

3

acT 2005

tH
a2
03
04

45

67

4y
16
11

ARENA

FA¥ILY

FARILY
FadILY
Famlly
FAHILY
FEAILY

+ FEMILY
+ FAMILY
FRMILY
FARILY
FEPILY
FARILY
Family

+ FARLLY
FARILY
FeAILY
FRYILY

- FARILY

~ FRMILY

T

fEp apd 7] [Sp R B R o)

Ly L LN o

(SR & o N N o ¢ S O 6 9]

{1l
{1l
{1
[
{73
vl

[m
.
m
(v
[r3
{7

]

[
£7
[r3
[m
(73

Fropoler Availabilily Reoort

SRAND RAPILE COMFLEX

1118404 Fage:l



FACROGH ReT

LET 2065

3
14
13

16

'{_7 -

i8
17
20
i

22
s

?3 -

24

i
23

26

77 -

28
39
30

3

- THY
- FRI
- GAT
- Sk
AV
- TUE
- WEL
- THi
- FRI
~ GA&T
Gl
~ KON
- TUE
- WEf
Thu
- FRI
- GAT
- SuM

~ WO

MOV 2005

0
G2
23
04
%
Gé
07
¢a
G7
ic
il
12
13
i4

15 -

14
i7

18

19 -

29

.
21
a7
23
23
24

14
23
28
7

{x]
28

T,
30

P
HiaW

01
ol
03
04

- TUE
- LED
- THU
- FRI
- GAT
- SN
~ HIN
- TUE
- 4l
- THU
- FRI
- GAT
- G
~ HLK
TUE
- WER
- THU
- FRI
Ga7
- GiN

- Ntk

¢ - TUE

- UL
- THI
- Fal
- GAT

- £l

s - MW
n9 L

TiE
- WER

T
LA

- THL
- FRI
- §aT

- Sk

ARENA

RELIGIOU C72

RELIGING LT3
RELIGTOY T2

CONCERT
COMEERT
CONCERT
CCHCEST
CONCERT

CONCERT
CONCERT
CoNCERT
CONCERT
CONCERT
CONCERTY

L7l
]
[
i

73

Fresoler fvnilanility Repord

GRAND RAPIDG COMFLEX

11718704 Fagal



FAL,ROCH.RFT Frespter Availabilitly Report

SRAND RATIDG DOPLEX

I‘EC 2005 e e ie o g e mtm o o e e s s
95 - HiH

06 - TUE

07 - LED

08 - THU

07 - FRl CONCERT 1O
10 - 587 CONCERT  [C2

IN-ROUEE [ST (12000F)

11 - SUR COMCERT [T
12 - *0d

13 - TLE

14 - WED

1% - THU CONCERT LT3
16 - a1

17 - oaf

18 - Sk

19 - KM

20 - TUE

21 - WED

- ThY

23 - FRI

24 - 54T

25 - Sl

26 - WM

37 - TUE

8 - Wil

2% - THU

30 - FRI

31 - GAT

11718704

Fagsd



